School Overview

NOTE: The full application, including this form will be posted on the ICSB website. Applicants
are advised that local community members, including members of the media, may contact the
designaied representative for the questions about the change in authorizer application.

Name of Charter School:

School Address:

Name of Board Chair:

Office and cell phone numbers:
Fmail Address:

Name of Head of School/Principal:
Office and cell phone numbers:
Email Address:

Year School Opened:

Name of Current Authorizer:

Charter School of the Dunes
860 N. Lake St.

Gary, IN 46403

Danielle Sleight
219-743-3756

daniellesleipht@sbeglobal.net

Christine Pepa
(work) 219-939-9690 (cell) 219-313-3268

cpepafticsotd.org

2003

Ball State University

Does the school contract or partner with an Education Sexrvice Provider (ESP) or other
organization for school management/operation? Yes No X*

*Ending services June 30, 2013

If yes, identify the ESP or other partner organization:

Current and Projected Grade Levels and Student Enrollment (per current Charter

agreement)

Academic Year | Grade Levels Served

Student Enrollment (Actual or Planned)

2013-2014 Kindergarten — Eleventh Grade | 575

2014-2015 Kindergarten — Twelfth Grade | 650

At Capacity Kindergarten — Twelfth Grade | 700




Proposal Narrative

Executive Summary

Vision: Charter School of the Dunes (CSD) is an educational setting of excellence where
children achieve full potential in their academic, personal, physical, moral,
environmental, and cultural development.

Mission: Our mission is to inspire success through an innovative curriculum while cultivating
environmental stewardship and setting high standards for student achievement through
family and community involvement. '

All aspects of the everyday functions of the school are implemented with this Vision and
Mission in mind.

Demographics: Current Grades: K-10
Enrollment: 460
African American: 95%
Asian: 2%
Hispanic: 4%
Caucasian: 2.7%
Multiracial: 1.7%
Qualified Free/Reduced Meals: 77%
Instructional Day: 7 ¥ hours
School Year: 190 student instructional days

CSD is pursuing a new authorizer as Ball State will no longer hold its charter as of June 30,
2013. The goal of this proposal is a partnership with an Indiana Charter School Sponsor that
understands Charter School of the Dunes’ demographics and challenges and will actively
collaborate with us as to prepare students for higher education, or the workforce, through a
rigorous curriculum and instruction that incorporates an environmental focus.

Governance and Management

CSD is a 501 ¢ (3) organization which currently has a charter with the public institution of Ball
State University. The school has a seven member board of directors; all members are residents
of the City of Gary. This governing board reviews at each board meeting academic progress,
financial statements, school activities, discipline reports, personnel issues and organizational
compliance. The Board reviews the leadership performance using the Indiana RISE evaluation
tool. The Board members are as follows: Danielle Sleight, President, founder and parent, 10
year member; Ron Cohen, Vice President, founder and professor, 10 year member; Darnail
Lyles, Secretary, Lawyer, 4 year member; Paul Orner, Treasurer, Banker, 4 year member;
Melisha Henderson, member, College HR director, 4 year member, Cloteal LaBroi, member,
Lawyer and director within the City of Gary’s mayor’s office, 2 year member; Sholanda
Drayton, member, parent, 2 year member.




Although there has been turnover in the past, CSD currently has had the same principal the past
four school years; the principal oversees all operations of the school. There are two assistant
principals (APs) at CSD whose primary role is instructional coach to the teachers and aides. The
APs also assist with professional development, data analysis, evaivations, discipline procedures,
and case conferences. CSD has a dean of students who oversees all discipline aspects. The
attendance officer at CSD oversees all tardy and attendance aspects and is a school representative
with the City of Gary’s truancy program. Finally, CSD has a director of special education who
oversees siaff and compliance for the special education population (21% of the student
population).

School Overview

Education Program

CSD offers a unique educational experience as we address individual needs by developing goals
specific for each student, By developing individual goals, it is as though each student has his/her
own individualized education plan. Considering the number of students who enroll in our school
that are academically behind at least one grade level, this strategy offers an exceptional
educational opportunity for our students to be academically successful. In addition to individual
goal-setting, CSD students take an environmental science class each year as a specials class. We
use the surrounding environment of the Indiana Dunes National Lakeshore and Lake Michigan to
expand our students’ knowledge of the environment and how to preserve this habitat. Another
unique aspect of CSD is the implementation of Character Education throughout the curricuium.
Each class incorporates the six pillars of Character as outlined by the Josephson Institute;
Trustworthiness, Respect, Responsibility, Fairness, Caring, and Citizenship. CSD also has a
specials class that focuses on Character Education through drama and art activities, Our goal in
including Character Education in our curriculum is to instifl these important pillars into students’
lives so they can become productive citizens and begin to break the chain of violence that
plagues the city. In addition to being unique academically, we are also unique financially. CSD
is a community of parents and staff that believe that all children have a right to a quality
educational alternative and that financial hardship should not stand in the way of such an
opportunity consequently there are no tuition or book fees at CSD. Providing an education frec
of any cost is essential for our families since nearly 77% of our students qualify for free/reduced
meals. Additionally, we offer uniform purchase assistance and often provide supplies for
families in need. Through the years, we’ve discovered that many of our families have
transportation issues due to lack of a vehicle, the cost of automotive repair, shift work, etc.
Consequently, CSD incorporated bus service last year even though it is not state funded,

Our philosophical approach to educating students is to meet each student’s individual academic
needs. Individual student and class goal-setting is a unique and innovative approach that we
have at CSD. These goals are teacher-created, based on the analysis of a student’s initial
benchmark assessment. Progress monitoring then takes place as often as every two weeks.
During progress monitoring, if students have not met their goals, additional interventions are
created to meet the students’ needs. If students have met their goals, then new goals are created
for them.




Our school design of individual goal-setting has improved educational outcomes for the student
population as evidenced by the growth achieved by students during the melass, DIBELS, NWEA
and ISTEP+ assessment,

The Board is pleased with the gains CSD has had with individual academic performance, but
continues fo be concerned with the fact that CSD has had historically low overall scores on the
state mandated ISTEP+. This low school performance is due to multiple variables; high transient
population, new student enrollees with academic levels at least two grade levels behind, high
special education population, and a facility that is not conducive to an uninterrupted instructional

environment.

#* The following table includes only those new enrollees that we were able to benchmark at the
beginning of the year and does not reflect the total population of new students as some do not
enroll until the school year is well in progress.

Knowledge Level of the 95 New 3rd - 9th Grade Students for the
2011 - 2012 School Year
Math Reading

New Students New Students
Khowledge Level When # of % of Knowledge Levet When # of % of

Entering CSD Students | Students Entering CSD Students | Students
6 grade levels behind 2 2% 6 grade levels behind 4 4%
5 grade levels behind 7 7% 5 grade levels behind 4 4%
4 grade levels behind 8 3% 4 grade levels behind 7 7%
3 grade levels behind i3 14% 3 grade levels behind 9 5%
2 grade levels behind 21 22% 2 grade levels behind 28 29%
1 grade level behind 35 38% 1 grade level behind 291 30%
On/Above Grade Level 8 8% On/Above Grade Level 14 15%

* All percentages are rounded to the nearest whole number,

Due to the above challenges, we initiated the following initiatives as a solution:

= Professional Development (PD})
» Higher Order Questioning skills
» Total Participation Techniques (Student Engagement)
»  Writing strategies
» Reading strategies
» Problem solving
= Individual student goal setting with all students
» Math and ELA class goal setting
» Needs Assessment from Scholastic Achievement Partners




*  Bus transportation
= Attendance Officer

x  Tower 35" Percentile parent meetings

= IREAD K-2
» TLiteracy Consultant
»  Math Consultant

»  Study Island/Reading Eggs

Despite the challenges of students coming in behind grade level, with the initiatives we put in

place during the school year, we were able to show substantial growth in ISTEP+ test scores; see

the following table:

i _Ch_a_l_fter School of the Dunes_I-S'I_‘EP+_ Results_

Grade | 2011 | 2012 | | oomt | o012

“Level ;| ELA{ELA | owth | :Science || Science |G

3rd

Grade | 49% | 66% 17% 30% 50% 20%

4th

Grade | 54% | 60% 6% 41% 60% 19% 36% 53% 17%

5th

Grade | 38% | 63% 25% 53% 53% 0% 21% | 38% 17%
6th

Grade | 42% | 50% 8% 47% 55% 8% 19% 18% -1%

7th

Grade | 49% ; 51% 3% 28% 49% 21% 28% | 24% -4%
8th

Grade | 28% | 39% 11% 12% 24% 22%

Analysis of the ISTEP+ data indicated lower percentile growth in the middle school grades. To
improve this growth for this school year we have re-assigned teachers to better match their
strengths, hired a full time math coach, and added additional language and math classes for
middle school.

Additional initiatives we put in place to raise student achievement this school year include:

» Director of Special Education;

s Math Coach;

> Increase of Special Education population of over 20%

= Additional Teacher Aides and Special Education Aides;

» Differentiated Instruction Workshop;

= Enhancement of Wednesday PD from last year;
= Double Math Instructional Time for 6© and 7" Grade Students;
* Language! Intervention Program for Grades 6-8;
r  Accelerated Math and Accelerated Reading;




= Continued PD with Scholastic Achievement Partners;
= Rigor and Relevance focus;

= Curriculum Mapping integrating Common Core Standards;
= Parent University;

Student Study Skills and Strategies

Healthy Living

Raising Teens

Understanding Data

Goal Setting

Math Games

Literacy Night

Math Night

Using Math and ELA websites and programs
* 90 Minute Uninterrupted Reading Blocks;

= ISTEP+ Tutoring Workshops;

»  Sylvan Tutoring.

YV VVVVVYYVYY

Legacy students are students who have been at CSD four or more years. We do see a greater
increase in scores on ISTEP+ for legacy students when compared to new students at our school:

CSD Legacy Students Passing ISTEP vs. CSD Legacy Students Passing ISTEP vs.
New Students FLA 2011-12 New Students Math 2011-12

Wlegacy Students  E New Students B legacy Students & NewStudents

8% 7%
: 69%

3 Grade 4Grade  5Grade 6 Grade 7 Grade 8 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5Grade 6Grade 7 Grade 8 Grade

We anticipate a continued trend of new enrollees coming in grade levels behind until we reach
capacity and maintain the students until they reach legacy status. In the meantime, we continue
assisting the students behind grade level with small group instruction and additional tutoring to
raise their achievement levels. Unfortunately, while trying to achieve student legacy status, we
will continue to struggle with the new state school performance grading system which
emphasizes the pass/fail rate of the ISTEP+ test. Our transient student population presents a
formidable challenge to improvement in the state grading system year to year, as the students
performing in the bottom 25% of each school must improve at the same rate as the average of all
other schools in the state. Therefore, our lowest performing 25% students, the most challenged
transient students, must improve as much as the lowest performing 25% of students in schools
with far less transient populations, such as Crown Point and Carmel school districts.




All school assessments are aligned to the school’s curriculum framework and state performance
standards. Our schedule for assessments at CSD is as follows:

Assessment Grades Taking  Windows

NWEA 3-9 Sept 1-Sept 30, 2012

NWIEA 3-9 Dec. 10-Jan 31, 2013
Apr. 18-May 30,

NWEA 3-9 2013 ,

ISTEP+- Multiple Choice April 29-May 10,

Online 3-8 2013

ISTEP+ Applied Skills 3-8 Mar 4-Mar 13, 2013

IREAD 3 Mar 18-Mar 20,2013

ECA (must Narrow Dec. 10-17, 2012
Window) 9 Apr 22-Jun 5, 2013
Acuity 3-8 Oct. 10-Oct. 31,2012
Acuity 3-8 May 9-May 30, 2013
Acuity 3-8 Mar 14-Apr. 5, 2013
Acuity 3-8 Jan 7-Jan 28, 2013

To evaluate student performance, in addition to the above mentioned standard tests and progress
monitoring, we also have teacher-created assessments that align to the state standards. Teacher-
created assessments are ongoing throughout the school year.

To provide as effective instruction as possible for these assessments, teachers have aligned the
cutriculum to Core and State Standards and follow a curriculum pacing guide to ensure materials
are learned in a timely manner. For all year preparation of ISTEP+ testing, we have incorporated
school-wide writing prompts as well as math extended response guestions that occur monthly.

Test results and instructional strategies to meet the students’ needs are also shared with the entire
school community, with presentations at a CSD board meeting as well as at a parent
informational meeting.

The Administrative Team, consisting of the principal and assistant principals, analyzes the
student data for each assessment. Strategies are then put in place to enhance the students’
strengths and to improve knowledge in the deficient areas. Examples of these strategies are
listed below:

Individual goal-setting;

Intensive small group instruction based on skill set;

Researched-based intervention programs such as Voyager;

Ril;

Parent workshops to teach study skill strategies to parents to work with children at home;
Test preparation in all grades to learn common format and language;

Tutoring before and after school;

o & & o » »




¢ Summer school.

Another procedure put into place is to retain a child if he/she has not shown substantial growth as
evidenced by the school-wide assessments. The child is then required to attend summer school.
If the student does not show substantial growth during summer school, the child is retained for
the next school year.

While analyzing our data, we realized we were not moving in a consistent upward direction for
student achievement and, therefore, revamped our approach to instruction as well as incorporated
new curriculum strategies. We then identified the barriers that existed to establish the success
we ultimately wanted to achieve. As a result, we have created curriculum maps for all grade
levels and subjects along with aligning all curricula to the Core and State Standards. Also, based
on initial student assessment, teachers created individual goals for every student and engaged in
progress monitoring to determine if the goal has been achieved. If the goal was met, a new goal
was created. If a student needs additional assistance in achieving the goal, alternative
interventions are initiated. We have also reconfigured our small group settings to better reflect
the needs of the students by having settings that are for moderate remediation while other groups
have been established for intensive remediation. We have also included Higher Order Thinking
questions for all lesson plans as well as including TPT lessons for student engagement.
Additionally, we are focusing heavily on teacher effectiveness by incorporating a new
coaching/evaluation instrument to ensure teachers are being effective instructionally. Although
teachers have had contracts that were not renewed due to performance in the past, this year we
are incorporating a mote rigorous evaluation instrument and will not renew a contract if the
teacher does not meet the criteria established in this new rigorous evaluation tool. Finally, we
are addressing our high transient student population, With this influx, we gain new students who
are academically behind at least one grade level. We have approximately 23% of our student
population new each year and over 85% of them are below grade level. To overcome this
barrier, we have created intensive small group instruction for those students who are at least one
grade level behind.

Financial Management

CSD staff members responsible for managing the school finances are the principal and business
manager. The school does contract Bookkeeping Plus, Inc. for bookkeeping service. CSD has
historically been financially sound and continues to be fiscally solvent. The current location of
the school is owned by the City of Gary and therefore the CSD Board purchased land for a new
facility outright years ago. After a thorough and comprehensive review by the Indiana
Department of Education, Charter School of the Dunes was awarded a multi-million dollar bond
allocation purchased by Chase Bank and BMO Harris Bank to undertake one of the largest
economic development projects in Gary and Northwest Indiana, The new $12,600,000 LEED
rated 60,000 SF K-12 school is currently under construction,

Operations and Compliance

CSD is in a dire situation in regards to our existing facility. We currently lease our building
from Gary Art Works, which leases from the City of Gary. The main building is a former naval
armory and only has the capacity to house a few classrooms, main office, cafeteria and
gymnasium. All students except kindergarteners are located in modulars and must transition




outside to go to other classes, lunch, and specials. Intermediate students do not have restrooms
in their modular and must transition outside to use the restroom in the main building. In
inclement weather, preparing students for this outside transition takes away from instructional
time, as students need to become properly prepared to encounter the elements. This transitioning
interferes with instructional time, deters focus, and can be a safety hazard as the winter months
are especially difficult (see photos below):

=%

Since the inception of the school, the Board has searched for another facility that would be motre
conducive to a learning environment. The Board attempted to buy a closed facility from the
Gary Public Schools. When that ventured failed, the Board then bought seven acres of land on
which to build a facility. Our plans to build had to be expedited when we were notified that the
City of Gary has starfed a renovation project that includes the development of the land that we
currently use as our school. With this development, our school could be evicted from our current
facility as early as next year.

CSD has no current or past litigation,

Other Information

CSD needs to improve student performance in math and ELA state assessments, The strategies
we have in place to improve these deficiencies were emphasized throughout this proposal.
Although immediate improvements have been made, it will take time to obtain the result we seek
to achieve; raising all student achievement to the level at or above the state average. We will
continue to analyze the data throughout the school year so proper adjustments can be initiated to
reach our goals.

We are on an educational journey with such momentum that we will excel as a school that will
be recognized not only for its superior academic achievement, but also as a cornerstone of the
community, Our students will build an educational foundation to be life-long learners who have
the intrinsic desire to establish and achieve their goals while becoming productive citizens of
their community who respect the environment.

CSD is searching for a sponsor that will partner with us as we continue to build our educational
foundation. This year we have expanded to tenth grade and will be adding a grade level each
year until we are a K-12 grade school. We will also be improving our academic program as we
include the following modifications:




* Placing new students according to their academic grade despite their age in order to be
taught and tested at the appropriate state mandated level;

e Implementing an academic credit recovery program for high school students that allows a
student to work outside the school day to learn failed subjects in anticipation of the next
testing cycle;

* Requiring remedial classes in math and English for all grades;

o Providing instructional coaches to all teachers in math, Enghsh and science to improve
student comprehension, retention, and ultimate success;

o Enhancing our higher ability programs to include Advanced Placement classes as well as
college coursework opportunities;

¢ Integrating project-based curriculum;

¢ Partnering with local career centers.

We believe that by working collaboratively with an invelved sponsor, CSD can overcome the
obstacles it currently encounters, while strengthening its successes, allowing it to become a
school of academic excellence on all levels.
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Danielle Sleight
7645 Ouk Avenue
Gary, IN 46403
DanfelleSleightmsboglobalet

Experience
2004-Presag

1997-2004

1994-1996

Volunfeer

2003-Prosent

2007-Pregent

2001-2005

Bdueation

Smal! Business Owiier
Internet Retuil Sales

Harbor Canvas
Owner marlie canvas company

Burrell Video Conter, Metvillville, Indiang
Distriet Manager, Blockbuster Video Franchise

Chaitor School of the Dynes
Founder

Board T'reasurer 2003-2009
Board President 2009-Prosent

Field Station Cooperalive
PBoard of Ditectors

Miller Citizens Corporation :
Board of Ditectors, Vice President

B.A,, Barat College, Lake Forest, Hlinois, 1990



Ronald Dennis Cohen
8641 Pine Ave.

Gaty, In, 46403

(219) 938-0661

Education:
Uhniv. of Californin-Betkeley, BA in History 1962
Uniy, of Minnesota-Minneapolis, MA in History 1964
Univ. of Minnesota-Minneapolis, PhD in History 1967

Posttions Held:
Professor of History Emeritus, 2004-2009, ndiana University Northwest
Trofessor of History, Dept. of Hisfory, Indiana Vniversity Northwest, 1985-2004,
Associate Professor of History, Dept. of History, Indiana University Notthwest,
Gavy, 197519835,
Assistant Professor of History, Dept. of Histoty, Indiana University Noxthwest,
Gary, 1970-1975.

Books (a selected list): ' ﬁ

1. The Patadox of Progressive Education: The Gary Plan and Urhan Schooling (with
Raymond A. Mohl, Port Washington, N.Y.; Konnikat Press, 1979).

2. Cohen and James B, Lane, Gary: A Plotorial History (Virginia Beach, Va.:
Donning Co., 1983; expanded ed. 2003). '

3. Childten of the Mill: Schooling and Sociely in Gary, Indiana, 1906-1960
(Bloomington, IN: Indiana University Press, 1990). Reprinied in paperback, N.Y.:
Routledge, 2002, with 2 new introduction by William Reese,

4. Cohen, ed., "Wasn't That a Time!"; Firsthand Aceounts of the Folk Music Revival
(Metuchen, N.J.: Scarcerow P'tess, 1995), Reissued in paperback 2002.

5, Rainbow Quest: The Folk Mugic Revival and Amesican Soclety, 1940-1970
(Ambhezst: Univ, of Massachusetts Press, 2002), Selected as a CHOICE Outstanding
Academic book, 2003,

6. Folk Musle: The Basies (N.Y.: Routledge, 2006).

7. A History of Folk Music Festivals in the Uniies States: Feasts of Musical
Celebration (Lanham, MD: Scatectow Press, 2008). :
8. Cohen and Bob Riesman, Chtcago Folk: Tmages of the Sixties Music Scene: The

Photogtaphs of Racburn Flerlage (Toronto: BCW Press, 2009).
9, Worl and Sing: A Histoty of Ocoupational amd Labor Union Songs in the United
States (Carquinez Press, 2009),



DARNATLL LYLES
ATTORNEY & COUNSELOR

RESUNE

EDUCATYON

1976 Gradualte of St. Ignatius College Preparatery, Chicage, Iliincis.
1981 Graduate of Howard University with a Bachelor of Science in Psychelogy and

So¢iology.

1986 Graduate of the Howard University School of TLaw,

LEEAL BXPERIENCE

June, 1986-1989 Acsistant Clty Attorney -~ City of Gary Law Department. Ciwvil practice
with emphasis on Mundcipal Taw.

Cotober, 1988-1991 Public Defender Lake Buperior Criminal Court fér the Honorable Janes
E. Letginger. Cyoun Polat, Indiana. Criminal defense.

gotober, 1989-1990 Associated with the Law Fiom of Shropshire & Hawkins, Gary, Indiana,-
civil and Criminal practice. |

Soptenber, 1998-1985 Aspooluted wiéh the Law Fizm of King & Meyer, P.C.. 363 8,

Yake Street, Gary, Indiana, Practloed in Ctho sxeas of persona; imjury, madical malpractice,
oriminal defense, rmal estate davelopment, municipal law, bond counsal and business matters.'

Jamsary L, 1997- Decembey 31, 2005~ Genexal Cownsel for the Gary/Chicage Airportk
Authority, Gary, Indiana. January 1, 2003~ December 31, 2008~General Covngel fox the Gary
Police Departmant.

January b, 1996- August 31, 1899~ Partner in the Law Firm of Maeyer, Lyles & Gadshalk,
P.C,, 363 8. lake 8treet, Gary, Indiana. Practiced in the areas of pexnsonal Injuxy,
eriming) defensa, real sstabe development, medical malpractice, wunicipal law, aviation law,
bond counael, geming and business mattexs. Reprasented the Gary Sanitary Bistriet in
likigation and the City of Gary with regard to Operato} compliance with the exigting Gaming‘

Agreements and Litigsation.



Sapbamber 1, 1890-May 3}, 2007- Established the Law Pirm of Darnail Lyles, Abroxngy &
Counselor at Luw, 504 Broadway, Suite 719, dary, Indiana, Practice ayeas remaln the sama,

June 3, 2007 to present establishad the Pixm of Darnaii Lyles, Attorney & Counselor,
5528 Melton Road, Miller Beach, Gary, Indisna, Practice aveas esxpanded to include social

security/disablility, adoptions and business collections.

COURTS
Admituved to practice in the Supreme Court and all lower éourts of Indiana, Northern and
Southern District Fedaral Courts of Indiana, Noxthegn and Southern District Pederal Courts
of I1Linols, Southern Bistrict of South Carolina and the Unlted States Cournt of Appeals for

the Seventh Cipauil,

MEMBERSHIPS AND ASSOCIATIONS _

Past President and Member of the Kimbrough 8ay Asscooiation, Lake County Ber
Association, Indlana State Bar Assoclabtion, Natlional Associabion of  Criminal ﬁafansa
Lawyers, Awerican Trial Yawyers Asgogiation, Calumet Inne of Court, Phi Delta Phi Legal .
Fraternity, Pershing Rifles and Kappa Alpha Psl. Paxt Owhar of the Gary Stealhosds Basketball

Team and Showkime Sports and Entertainmment.
GE&ERQ:. GC;M‘RAGTOR
General CQontractor 19%2 to Dacember 31, 2003
REAL ESPATHR DEVELOPEP

340 Lincoln Street (2 Units}, Gary, Indiana 1987
4830 Kenkueky (8%, Gary, Iadiana 1988

401 Jefferson, (6 units) Gary, Indianz 1988

350 Buchanan, {3units)Gary, Indiana 1984

376 Madison, Gary (9 Units), Indiana.1991

7045 Qak Avenue, (SF) Gary, Indiana 1993



330 South Dake Street (SF), Gary, Imndiana 1594

376 Jefferson, {4 Units)CGary, Indiana 1994

5837 Juniper, {SF) Miller Beach, Gary, Indiana 2008

5420 Melton Road (Commercial), Miller Beach, Gary, Indlana 2007

gerenity Lake SYenior Independent Living Facility {100 Units) Millex Beach, Gary,'

indiana, Projected completion dale Novsmber 2010,



PaulW. Orner

Work Bxpsrance

Educatlon

1001 N, Wayne Skeet-

Gary, IN 48403

Phone 211.938,2676

Emalk: purorner@comeastnat

Mercanille Natlona! Beok of Indiana/Haris N.A, Hammond, i
Vies Prasident : 2003 - presunt
+  Pro-Hanls sequiditon, Monager of Leading and Corporele Sendoes.
Responsible for one of two fondiny divislons and {he cash management
product fine. Subsuyuently, | bave had msponalblily for & primatlly middle-

market porifollo with typloal responslbliitias as deseribed Immadiately balow,

Bank One, N.A, . -~ Merdilvill, IN
Viee Prosidont, 24 VP, AVi®, CAO 1680+ 2005
¢ Sanlor hanker in the Middle Market Divislon. Reaponsiblo for ali aspects of
davelopment, menegement, and adiministradion of a commerclal foan portiallo,
Wotk cosely wilh customers, senfor management and credit to negotiate,
slsfurs, undenviile and epprove commercial loan commilments up o
$40MM.  Wark with legal counsel to document and dlosa complex foen
agraements, Market full range of protiucts and services to comorate cliants
and prospaots, | have strong ceedit skifls, and am particutarly knawiedgsablo
of Tressury Management and intemationat praducts.

Garporate Pradust Managar, Markeling Officor 1488 - 1690

»  Oversaw develgpmeni and hvplemantafion of bank's first sleolronls cash

menagemont products {malnframs and PC-based ACH progucls, investment

swoap), Asted as Jalson fo Comporale Banking Divislon with $016 rasponsiolily

for matkeling new products 1o corgorale customers, Tieasiry management
relationships grew fram hone T over 60 dudng this perlad.

Commerelal Loan Assoslate, Gredlt Analyat ' 1086~ 1988

o Agsisted In revlewing and classifylng the commercis! Toan porffoll of an

acqulred bank, as welt ag having my initial responsibillly for commerclal losn
rolationafitps. Craditanalyst for fftasn months.

H & R Blosk Hamraond, N 1984 - 1088
Manager, Business Services Division
« Raosponsibla for all aspacts of establiahing this new” divisian tn tha Hammond
reglon,  Qur product was @ {urnkey accounting and fax senvics for small
business, Engagements Merensed from about 10 to 45 by the end of 1885,
vinen the Corporaton detlded to oxit the buslness nalonally.

Garup Constriotion Co, Gary, N , 1981 - 1006
Ctflos Manager
o Manaped clorioal staff of 34, Had generat cospansibility for aff office funclions
Including purchasing subcontractlolllng, shop drawing approval, moject
cootiinalion, change-orders, legal mattars, alo.

Fnivarslty of Evansville Evansvile, IN 1677 - 1081
B3 - Business Adminlstratlon '
Finance malor, Economics minot



Melisha Jones-Henderson
7717 Indian Boundary m Gary, IN 46403

(219) 938 - 8092
melishal T17@sheglobal net
- T GORE COMPETENCIES
a Financlal Management = Operatlons Management a Oryanizational Developmont
a Parformance Management w Employse Relatlons w Benefit Administration

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
CALUMET COLLEGE OF ST, JOSEPH - Whifing, IN _ 6/2000 - Present

Vice President of Student AffalrsiDirector of Human Resources L _ 4/2008 - present

o Rosponsible for $10 mifon In credit hour production, hucget projections, direction and ovorsight of all
operations in student services area ‘

o Institufional planning with Prasident and 3 ofher Vice Presidents

o Rosponsible for the distribution of $2.5 million of institutional afd fo students, and oversight of financial alf
through the government and financlal instituions

o Direcls 10 Depariment Managets, and general oversight of 45 empioyees

s Responsible for providing guldance, advice and discipline for 1300 students

o Administer beneffs, new hire information, conduot intervisws, process backgrolind checks, sounseling,
terminations and all other human resource functions
Manage safary and henefifs for 400 smployees

s Overses payroll processing functions & disirbution, safoly and securily oparafions of the institution

Director of Human Resources & Payroll _ 9/2002 ~ 4/2000

Administer payroll and human tesources for 400 employees

File and mainfak payroll contracts, feap stipends, Independent sludy, acadsric and acoeleraled programs
Procoss retiremont spreadsheets and calerlations,

Conduct Inferviews, new hire olentations, benefils mestings, prosess background cheoks, counseling,
creation and roview of policlas and procediites

o Administer workman's compensafion, fainfly medical leave, overses disciplinaty actlons, manage personnel -
reconts, mange vacation requests, review job descriptions and selary ranges, process farminations and
reslghations .

Co-wrole the new polfoies and proceduras manual and performance appraisal system

Chalrman of Compensation Camniffies, and Employee appreciafion cominiftess fo provide ncentive and
morale boosting prograims {including speclal events and awards)

. & o »

Human Resources, Payroll & Accounting Clerk 6/2000 - 8/2002

Responsible for caloulaling and processing payroll hours, taxes, and fransfers for 130 employees
Create purchase orders, Input involces and out accounts payable cheeis for the enflie college
Administer health benaflis packages and health insurance issues vith employees

Procass all human resources packages; familarize Indlulduals with different honefif oplions

Work close with the VP of Bisiness & Finance

> & & > O



Welisha Jones-Henderson
7747 Indian Boundary m Gary, IN 46403
(219) 838 - 8092
melisha?717@sbeglobal.net

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE CONTINUED

EXEL LOGISTICS 7/1396 ~5/2000
Office Manager/Assistant to the General Manager 9/1997-5/2000
o  Responsibie for the end of the month financial closing, and payroll for 2 location cost centers
o Processed and administered end of fiscal year closing
o Assisled the General Manager with budget projeciions
o Overses ail humen resource funclions and hirhy practives
s Processed ell billing
Admintstrafive Assistant/Payroll Clerk 7/1096 911987

s Responsihle for data entry and processing payroll every woek for 80 assoviates

o Examine all accounts payable invoices and malch purchase orders wilh involces

o Porform coding and data enfry once a week for all involces info Oracle dalabase ,

o Conduct human resourcos otlentations and perforim human resource dulies stch as new hires, workien's
compensation, terminations and henefits : _

o Alsowork as a Cusfomer Service Rapresentative

WOODMAR COUNTRY GLUB 1271991 -7/1998
Accounts Payable Inventory Clerk | 471993 - 7/1996

o Responsibla for tipdating the accounts payable filas, matching all purchase ordors with the correct Involces
o Analyzing each involce and posting exponses fo the proper depariments, and printing chacks for ell vendors
e npuiting monthly food & haverage invenlory Info the system to produce the monthly safes and usage repors

Receptlonlt | 191991 - 411903
o Answered phones, assisted club members and visflors ‘

EDUCATION

iastors of Business Administration (MBA) m Indiana Wesleyar - Maiion, IN = 2007
Bachelors of Science Organization Management m Caltimet Coflege ~ Whitlng, IN m 2003

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Northwast IN Sociefy of Human Rasources Menagers (NWISHRM) w 2002-Present
Cenfral Associalion of Coltage &Universify Business Officers {CACUBQ} = 2007-Presont

COMPUTER SKILLS

Miotosoft Office Sulle, Great Plains, EC! Empower Payroff System, Empowér Sludent Software, UNIVERS Student

Software, Oratle, Quicken, Quick Books, P C Tima clock, ADP software.




Melisha Jones-Henderson
7717 indlan Boundary m Gary, IN 46403
(219) 938 - 8092
melisha7717@sbcglohal.net

¥

Dy, Angelique Brown
Physician

6114 Harison Street
Meriilivilte, IN 46410
(219) 887 - 1340

Lisa Wilson

Pro-Trial Service Officer
Federal Counls

16007 English Oaks Ave fA
Bowle, MD 20718

{(301) 218- 1147

Kyle Allen

Gary Clty Gouncliman
401 Broadway

Gary, IN 46404

. (219) 748 - 6380

Dwayne Diliahunty
Indian Stafe Poiice
8400 Juniper
Gary, IN 46403
(215) 939 - 2158

Olfle Thomas
Registered Pharmacist
6516 Kansas
Hammond, IN 46323
(219) 845 . 2724

. REFERENCES



CLOTEAL M. LABROI, ESQ.

1521 West 45" Ave, Gary, Indiana 46408
(901) 336-7258 re-mail: cloteal labroi@email.com

EDUCATION
UNIVERSITY OF MEMPHIS

CECIL C. HUMPHREY*S SCHOOL OF LAW, Memphis, TN Augusf 2006 ~ May 2010
Juris Doctorate Degree '
{Degree Awarded May 2010)

Bar Admission — State Bar of Georgia, 2011
ROOSEVELT UNIVERSITY, Chicago, IL January 2006 - May 2006

Paralegai Studies Program
{Awarded -American Bar Association approved paralegal certificaie)

TENNESSEE STATE UNIVERSITY, Nashville, TN August 1998 - May 2002
Bachelor of Science, Mass Conununications ~ Public Relations Emphasis
(Cunr Laude honors)

PROFESSIONAL

EXPERIENCE

THE LAW OFFICE OF DEMOCRATIC MAYORAL NOMINEE
KAREN FREEMAN-WILSON, Gary, IN
Assaciate April 2011-FPresent
»  Assisted with factual and legal issues and drafled legal memorandum for clients,
+  Conducted settlement agreements for clients with opposing counsel and mediators,
¢ Conducted document reviews and assessed the relevance and responsiveness of
documents, '
s Currently assisting with the closing of the Taw practice and (ransition for Democeatic
Mayoral Nominee Karen Freeman-Wilson. )

THE UNIVERSITY OF MEMPHIS SCHOOL OF LAW, Memphis, TN
Graduate Assistant/diumni Recruiter August 2008-December 2010
o Assisted with the coordination and implementation of the Fennessee Institute for Pre-law
Summer Alternative Admissions progrant,
e Assisted with the minerity reeruitment for the U el M Law School, including travel
recruitment and forums, .
+  Administiative duties, including data entry, copying, filing, and fxing,

THE WHARTON FIRM, Memphis, TN
Law Clerk - Septenber 2007-November 2007
+  Analyzed factual and fegal issues and draited legal memorandum.
»  Assisted attorney’s with trial preparation which resubted in & $4 miltion verdict for theiy
clien,
s Responsible for abstracting deposition summaries for law firm,
»  Condugted document reviews and assessed the relevance or responsiveness of
documents.
»  Organized and maintained files for clients and allomeys.

NASHVILLE ELECTRIC SERVICE, Nashville, TN -
Law Clerk- Qffice of General Counsel _ May 2007 — August 2007
s Resemrched and examined legal documents and applicable law to draft opinions on issues

before the General Counsel for ene of the 12 largest public electric utilities in the nation
distributing 700,000 customers in Middle Tennessee,

o Analyzed factual and legal issues and drafted fepal memorandum which included
conclusions. .

*  Attended employer/employee mediation and worker’s compensation proceedings and
settlements with General Counsel. ’

*  Assisted General Counsel with trial preparation,




Cont’d

CLAUSEN MILLER, P.C., Chicago, IL :
Paralegal Intern January 2006-May 2006

&

Organized and maintained files for cHents and attorneys in cases involving insurance
companies, financial clients and corporations.

Conducted document reviews for clients by assessing the rclevance or responsiveness of
documents, using knowledge about the facts of the case and the Issues ofthe law,
Assisted aitorney’s in preparing for depositions and maintaining the firm’s practice of
serving and representing the insurance mdustty

Abstracted depositions that were used as is by attorneys at irial,

Instrumental in triaf preparation.

MEMPHIS GRIZZLIES-NBA, Memphis, TN
Media Relations Speciafist February 2003-May 2005

e & 4 & 9 ° 0 " W
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Iacilitated coordination of interviews for players.

Wrote feature artieles on events for team website and publications,
Authored month-in-review for post season media guide 2002-2003,

Aided in development of team media guide for 2003-2004 season.
Responsible for credentialing of' local and national media,

Responsible for the hiring and overseeing of game night infems.

Authored “Grizzlies This Week” department publication.

Authored game-by-game match ups for Grizziies game-day programs.
Tnstrumental in the ceordination of local and national media during season.
Wrote gane notes for road games,

Assisted in covering home practices and sheosarounds.

Researched and coordinated special projects including NBA Coach of the Year
campaigns and team logo faunch.

Secured editorial coverage and coordinated distribution of press releases.
Wrote and edited feature profiles and articles for grizzlies.com

Researched and provided opponent statistics for coaches home and away,
Implemented press conferences, photo sessions and media events.

BALTIMORE RAVENS-NFL, Baltimore, MD
Intern-Media Relations Departinent July 2002- Jayary 2003

L I R

Instrumental in the coardination of local and national media during training camp for the
2002-2003 season,

Impiementation of successtul Ravens charity events,

Facilitated game-day operations and credentials for the 2002-2003 season.

Acquired post game quotes from players and coaches to be placed on team website.
Facilitated coordination of inierviews for players and coaches,

Authored community press releases and team information,

Instramental in overall operation of media relations department,

NASHVILLE PREDATORS-NHL, Nashviile, TN
Infern-Media Relations Department January 2002-May 2002

L

Responsible for game-day handwritien game sheets and out-of-town scores during 2001-
2002 NHE, season.

Organized statistical compilation of information,

Acquired guotes from players and coaches during season to be placed on team website.
Authored corporate communication press releases and information

SAN FRANCISCO 49ERS-NFL, San Francisco, CA
Intern-Media Relations Department July 2001 -August 2001

Wrote feature artlcles on the team and the organization that were used in various
publications tor pame-day programs.

Aided in the coordination of Jocal and national media during training camp for the 2001-
2002 season,

Facilitated coordination of interviews for players and coachss.

Acquired post game quotes fram players and coaches dusing training camp fo be placcd
on team website,



Cont'd

INDIANA PACERS- NBA, Indianapolis, IN
hitern- Media Relations Department May 2000-August 2000
¢ Assisted in the coordination of all local and national media during the Eastern
Conference Playoffs and the National Baskeiball Asseciation Finals 2000,
+  Administrative duties, including data entry, copying, filing, and faxing,
s Acquired post game guotes from visiting eoaches and players,
«  TInstrumental in the statistical compilalion of information.

HONORS ‘
Assaciation of Women Attorney’s Scholarship recipient — (2610)
Rita 8. Geier Scholarship recipient—University of Memphis School of Law
Ben F, Jones Chapter -National Bar Association — L Scholarship Recipient {2006}
Hammond Business and Professional Women’s Scholarship recipient
Tennessee State University — Gary, Indiana Alumni Chapter Scholarship recipient
ACTIVITIES

Active Member — Association of Women Attorney’s
Active Member — Alpha Kappa Alpha Sovority, Incorporated

REFERENCES AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST



SHALONDA L. DRAYTON
1030 Willard Strest
Gary, IN 46404
{219) 427-8125
shadrayton®@gmall.com

RELIABLE, DILIGENT, AND TECHNICALLY SKILLED ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SPECIALIST known for accuracy,
attention to detail and thnelinass in managing disbursement functions for diverse-ladustry employers.
A/P career spans 17 years and has included accountability for the remittance of approximately $4M-
$5M per month, Backed by solid proficlencles In generally accepted accounting principles {GAAP), MS
Office Sulte, various construction and healtheare sofiware, as well as EDI systems,

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

March, 2008-June, 2011: The Methodist Hospitals, inc., Gary, |N

Accounts Payahla Specialist

Responsibilities included preparing and entering Involces and check requests into the accounts payable
system. Ensuring involces were coded, approved and paid within credit tarms. Verified pricing and
quantities ardered and recelved through Purchasing and promptly reselved discrepancies .
Renegotlated payment terms with vandors to Improve cash flow and reconciled vendor statements,
Maintained accurate and compliant A/P files and records.

September, 2003 ~ March, 2008: vicDaniel Fire Systems, Portar, IN

Accounti t .

Responsibllities included processing invoices for all 12 offices nationwide In a timely manner. Verified
proper approvals and signatures on Involces, Prepared monthly DSO raport 1o conduct cash calls,
Reduced DSO by 18%. Communicated with customers within cotlection guldelines to receive payment.
Initiated letters and placed phone calis to definguent account holders with a S0% success {payment)
rate, Handled angty clients in an interpersonally effective manner. Audited definguent accounts and
submlited to an outside collection agency. Assisted Financial Analyst in planning and execution of
hudgets and job cost. Developed policies and procedures for Account Collections and Purchase Order
system for Accounts Payable,

October, 1999 - July, 2003: Webb Constructlon, Inc,, Gary, IN

Asslstaut Controller -

Responsibilities included Payroli for 80 - 125 employess weskly, preparing monthly unlon reports and
certified payroli registers, projecting weekly cash flow statements, bank reconcilfation, and Accounts
Payable, Analyzed financlal racords to forecast future financial position within budget regulrements,

January, 1994 ~ March, 1993 Dungy's Accounting B Tax Service, Gary, IN

Offlca Manager

Responsible for preparing Individual, Partnership, and Corporate Tax returns with the appropriate
schedules, Evaluated and addressed clients concerns regarding tax changes. Responsible for Accounts
Payable and Recelvable for the office and the hookkeeping of several businesses.

EDUCATION

September, 1993 - June, 1994 Davenport University — Mersliiville, Indlana
Major: Accounting

September, 1987 ~ June, 1991 West Side High Schoal - Gary, Indlana
Major: Business

August, 1989 - June, 1997 Gary Area Career Cantay - Gary, Indlana
Major: Accounting '
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Charter School of 1he Dunes
Board Mecting
January 22, 2013
Call to Order and Roll Calf
s The mesting was called to oxder by Danielle Sleight at 5:33 pun.
» Parties in attendance:
Board Members; Dandelle Sleight, Roh Cﬂheh, Shalonda Drayion,
Cloteal LaBroi, Paul Oruer, M-eiisha Henders§11
Charter School of the Dunes: Christine Pepa '
o Cluests: 0 |
s Number of Public Attendees: 0
Approval of Agenda
e Motion to approve the agenda, Shalonda Drayton; seconded, Paul
Crner. All were in favor.
Approval of Closed Session
¢ Danielle Sleipht made a motion to add a closed session to the end of
the agenda, All were in favor, |
Approval of November 2012 Minules
o Paul Orner made a motion to approve the November minutes with the
cotrections he mentionad; Shalonda Drayton, seéonded. Afl were in
ravor,
Public Comment{s}: None

Charter Renowal




s CSD is currently benchmarking for grades K-3, which means
they ate tracking the progress of the students. CSb is also.
administering State required acuity testing and the W8z A,
program, Also CSD starts ISTEP testit_lg in March!

B. Enrollment
o Enrollment is at 460 studenls, There is still a waiting list for 3"
and 7% grade students,
C. Suspensions and Expulsions
¢ ‘Thete were 15 out-of-school suspensions. The majority of
those suspended was middle school stuciénts, whom have been
in trouble before,
D, Facilifies
s No update as of yet. Patch work is being done as heeded.
F. Communliy and Parent Events
o Christine has a community meeting with the studettts tomorrow
at 8 a.m. and an informational mecting with parents tornorrow
at 2 p.. to discuss the charter renewal. Christine also has an
Prufte T
Indiane University meeting at 4:30 p.n. fomotrow,
T, Payrolf
»  Last payroll on the 29_“‘ was successiul,
+  No new policies to update.
s {ne staff member used donated money toproperly, She was

suspended for 5 days without pay and afterwards placed on
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Charter School of the Dunes
Board Meeting
November 27, 2012

Call to Order angd Holl Cail
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Meeting called to order by Danielle Sleight at 5742 p.m.

Parties in attendance:

Board Members: Danielle Sleight, Ron Cohen, Paul Orner, Shalonda Drayton, Melisha
Henderson _

Charter School of the Dunes: Christine Pepa

* American Quality Schools Corporatmn (AQS): Chris Austm

Guests: 0
Number of Public Attendees:_ 0

Approval of Agenda

Motion to approve agends, Shalonda Drayton; secanded Paul Orner All were in
favor.

Approval of October 2012 Minutes

e

Motion to approve, Ron Cohen; seconded, Shalonda Drayton All were in favor.

Public Comment{s): None
Financial Report

® .

=]

Allis well from a cash flow perspective.”

Assorting the accouniing for the building was mentioned discussion, properly
setting up the general ledger accounts. Regarding the audit, Marikite ran CSOTD's
audit scenario by Brian Anderson from Bookkeeping Plus, He responded that
CS0TD is on track and there is nothing additional to be done at this point.
Everything is in place at this point and should remain, Danieile will contact Tony
Smith for further guidance.

Pan] is working on getting CSOTD set up with online banking through Chase. In the
meantime, he spoke with Teny regarding access to funds that would cover potential
incidental billings, such as Bookkeeping Plus for $140. Tony has yet to confirm but
was pretty sure that CSOTD could advance it, rather than expense it. Transactions
of this type will appear on the balance sheet as “Due from CSOTD Holdings”. CSOTD

will receive these payments, as well as July/August rental fees, as reimbursements.

There is a question regarding $214,479 listed as “Due: CSOTD Holding” under
Accounts Receivable. Paul recommends that CSOTD view the general ledger
accounts for Land Acquisition and Development, numbers 41000, 45100,
45100.319, and 45100.720. Details regarding these entries are needed, When
money is received from the Treasury, those amounts must be in order for
presentation to Allison. Christine will follow up 1o get clarity on a few items.

Motion to accept the Financial Reports, Paul Orner; seconded, Shalonda Drayton. All
were in favor. '

Board officers signed off on vouchers.
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New Facility - Update:

e Construction is still en schedule. The West Building’s main steel has been
established with some of the secondary steel. The joists will arrive later this week.
The West Building will be completed early next week. The erection of the center
main steel began last Wednesday, when the steel was delivered. The joists for the
center main steel will ayrive in another week. The East Building will be delivered on
Monday, Decerber 39, The window and wall panels will arrive mid-December. The
goal is to have the entire West Building enclosed by mid-january. The weather will
not hinder the construction of the steel.

s Lastmonth, Danielle and Christine met with Eric from CDM, at CDM, and went over
remaining purchased hours for s@xvice, They discussed all of the final details
relating to hardwoed floors, to painting, to dividers in the gym. They wanted to get
a full insight of Eric’s vision. They also spoke with someone to get gmdance on
building furniture.

o The new facility will have lockers. The high school kids will have full lockers
upstairs; the younger children will have half lockers dowustairs; kindergarteners
will use cubbies. There will also be lockers in the gym bathroorss, of which students
will supply their own locks. -

e Melisha will provide Danielle with furniture catalogs especially for schools.
Melisha's school has had recent success with furnfture purchasing. McShane
supplied furniture for their science labs. Melisha also suggested Hon Furniture.
The more items purchased warrants a better discount.

e Decisions regarding the gym floor are being made now. There are sufficient funds
available to cover the installation of a hardwood floor. Being frugal with other
purchases has made it possible for CSOTD to handle the expense of a gym floor.

s The size of the gym is regulation for high school; however, seating is not regulated
to hold a conference or playoffs. Melisha will also email to Danielle and Christine
information regarding the purchase of bleachers and gym floors.

e  CSOTD will move into its new facility in july 2013.

o Danielle is looking into options regarding the absorption of noise with the high
ceilings, She is interested in a more organic-shaped design to deflect the sound.

e Danielle will follow up with Cloteal for an update on the land west of the new
facility. :

Director’s Report

A. Academic Report
e Christine is working on (SOTD’s charter renewal, which is due December 15t A

copy wiil be available to Board members upon compietion.

B. Enrollment
o ADM countis 471; Current enroliment 461.

o Waiting list: 3 grade and 7% grade; Kindergarten is full.

C. Suspensions and Expulsions :

e Qut-of-school suspensions are extremely high, 22,




o After speaking with the Dean, it was determined that most of the suspensions
are new stadents, who are habitual offenders. Parent meetings are being
conducted to inform new parents of the suspension process and ensure that
they understand CSOTD's expectations regarding student conduct. There have
been some fights. ' X ' ‘

o Students are taking advantage of the Community Service program. Itis offered
four days a week, one hour a day. One hour of community service equals ote
point a student can earn back. Participation is not mandatory.

. FPacilities . '

e  Minor repairs are being done as needed.

Community and Parent Event and Issues

o Curriculum Showcase will be held this Thursday at-4:30 p.m.

¢ Market Day will be held on December 128

e Community Meeting - December 20%, Student of the Month.

o There will be a Parent-Principal Breakeast following the Community Meeting,

o Invitations to the Staff Holiday Celebration went out the Board members. K will
take place on December 20t at 6:00 pan., at the Fiesta Palace in Merrillville,

o The Christinas Break is December 21 - January 6.

Financial Issues §

e On September 30, an employee was over paid. This issue has not been
reconciled to date. The funds are still sitting in the employee’s account. Camille
at AQS is responsible for this correction. Due to tax implications, this must be
resolved by the end of the year.

e The last payroll was successful, however. It was helpful to view the summary
sheet for verification prior to checks being submitted.

. Policies

o  Grant writer, Brenda Henry-Scott, has two grant proposals out, one for $10,000 -
nutritional, health, and fitness aspects; and the other for environmental, from
$500 to $5,000. Both grants are due in the month of December,

» A contact has been sent out to connect with the gentleman on the West Coast
affiliated with big capital fundraising projects. Christine is requesting a meeting
with him to discussion ideas of how to bring in funds for technology. He has
worked with hospitals, Lincoln Park Zoo, and a Chiéago Bears goif outing that
generated $40,000.

. Staff

CSOTD is fully staffed.

Additional aides were hired for Special Education. The percentage of Special
Education is nearly 21 percent, which averages about 12 or 13. CSOTD’s numbers
are much larger than average hecause its students show great progress due to _
quality of instruction and attention from staff. These results travel by word-of-
mouth, prompting CSOTD to be known as “Special Education Friendly”. Students are
mainstreamed into the classroom as much as possible, preparing them for the real '
world, Some students will be life skills children, while others are diplotna students,




VIIL

IX.

Some school districts have self-contained classrooms while others do not. The
Federal Government, through the State, provides additional funding for Special
Education, which supplements the hiring of class aides.

» Ron thanked Christine for responding to the Supermtendent about the new grading
system, Teachers and parents were all informed and fully aware.

AQS Comments/Updates

= Chris has been working closely with team leaders, going into the classrooms

-working on structure. There are a lot of effective processes in place. The goalis that
teachers continue to implement those systems to reduce furnover for next year.
o Chris will also escalate the correction of the September 30 payroll issue.
Confirmation of next meeting -
o The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 22, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. 7
Adjournment: Motion to adjourn the meeting, Shalonda Drayton; seconded, Paul Orner.
All'were in favor. . '




Charter School of the Dunes
Board Meeting .
October 23,2012

1 Callto OI der and Roll Call
¢ Meeting called to order by Danielle Sleight at 5:48 pam.
o  Parties in attendance: - -
Board Members: Danieile Sleight, Ron Cohen, Sha]oncla Drayton Cloteal LaBroi
Charter School of the Dunes; Christine Pepa
American Quality Schools Corporation {AQS): Tom Aubin
e Guests: 0 _
e Number of Public Attendees: 0
IL.  Approval of Agenda
e Motion to approve agenda Ron Cohen; seconded, Shalonda Drayton. All were in
favor.
L. Approval of September 2012 Minvtes
¢ Motion to approve, Shalonda Drayton; seconded, Ron (‘ohen AH were in favor.
v, Public Comment{s}: None
V. Financial Report
¢ No visible issues with report at this time. .
¢  Christine included the cash flow report for the month but would like to double-
check it and average the supply.
o In the month of September the entire quarterly bond payment was paid out. The
State will send its portion then CSD will pay the remaining balance. John Anderson
never filed the original paperwaork, resulting CSD needing to come up with $161,000
out of its general fund. The funds are being reimbursed, however, The next
payment is due fanuary 2013,
o  Motion to accept the vouchers, Ron Cohen; scconded, Cloteal LaBroi, Al were in
favor.
¢  Tom Aubin (AQS) was invited to participate in the financial discussion. He made
know thatl he can cnly cover questions regarding payroll, HR, and insurance.
A. Insurance - This year AQS changed brokers. They are now with Assurance
Agency, located outside of Chicago. Assurance covers CSD's ;greneral liability
for the school and property, which encompasses everything except worker’s
compensation. The naw account executive for the general liability piece is
Pete Dobrolynski, The insurance is carried by an outfit called Wright Risk
‘Management. They insure nonprofits and specifically schools; unlike the
Indiana Insurance package, under Wright Risk Management, the Board is
insured as a part of the Educators Legal Liability package. So thereisno
need to purchase a separate policy to cover the ]ega]‘ liability insurance for
the Board. The Board is covered under AQS’s umbrella. There isa $10
million dollar umbrella; with a one million dollar basic liability amount.

»  Coverage - Corey is used for bulider’s risk insurance, Danielle
received an email from Corey asking if insurance with his company
ended on October 22rd. Tom instructed CSD to keep the insurance
with Corey for the time being, which is athletic coverage. He added,




once the insurance s up for renewal, AQS can bid out through
Assurance to search for a better deal to save money or make the
decision to remain with Corey. Danielle recapped: Through Corey,
there is coverage for athletic and builder’s visk; Chartis handles
workman’s comp, through ADP; and a $10 million dollar umbrella for
general Hability under Assurance,

= Bonding - Danielle asked Tom to advise regarding the procedure as
to Marikita Segrest being bonded. She is the business manager and
treasurer for CSD. The question was also raised as to finding out
who else needs to be bonded. Tom believes that Marikita should be
bonded hut will investigate and follow-up with Danielle with a
definitive answér, Christine also asked about being bonded in
relating to the collection of Tunch money and issnance of receipts, as
well as her secretary transporting deposits to the bank. Tom
responded that he does not think they have to be bonded because
there is coverage under the general liability for protection against
the absconding of funds. He will verify the specifics regardmg this as
well and provide an update.

B. Worker's Compensation - Handled through Chartis Group. Worker's
compensation claims are handled through Human Resources, processed by
Dawn and Camille. Anything that is general liability comes through Tom.

C. Payroll - Everything is going well. Payroli reports to Human Resources
(Camille}, whe reports to the head of HR (Dawn}, who reports to Tom. Tom
made some chianges when he assumed his current position, changes that
included the management of payroll. Camille, who is a professional payroll
manager, was hired in having approximately 24 years of experience in the
private sector. Due to the payroll of a school consisting of salary, hourly, and
hybrid categories, there have been some adjustiments for Camille coming
from the business sector; however, they are progressively moving forward.
Tom expressed should any mistakes arise, they will own up to them, and no
employee will be shorted. His goal is zero mistakes, but it is sometimes
impossible in a school environment. The last payroll was almosterror free.
He has put some procedures in place that will minimize errors, as they move -
forward. He stated that payroll is processed from paperwork; therefore,
information submitted must be correct. Phone requests are not acceptable
in relation to an employee’s pay; paperwork must be submitted.

VL Mew Facility - Update

-]

Everything is on schedule, The steel will be delivered the second week of
November. They are currently working on the plumbing and electrical jn the
cafeteria, They are concentrating heavily on the Old Hobart Road and north portion
ofthe building. They have tapped into the main water and sewer lines.

- Pat researched the property that is just to the west of the new facility. That portion

ofland is owned by the Mational Park. Danielle and Christine met with the owners as
well as Susan from Lee and discussed the possibility of trails through the property,
and implementing different programming concepts to partner with the high school.
The owners were very fond of CSD's ideas, which will allow them to incorporate
thelr mentoring programs with €SD students. '
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The property layout is as follows: GSD, the National Park, and the entire curb along
Old Hobart Road {which has several owners). Danielle has-a list of the owners and
their portion of land. NIPSCO owns a lot of small pleces of land in this area. There
will not be a problem contacting NIPSCO; however, it may be difficult reaching the
various owners of the other properties. It is'thought that those areas of land could
he used for trails or programming. Danielle suggested to the Board to decide
whether they want to pursue the use of the varicus lands and seek out whether or
not they can be dénated to CSD. She also has the information regarding the cwner
of the gas station property. Cloteal agreed to check inte the gas station property.as
well as contact Lauren Rega who is a director with access to ground field money.
Lauren also has federal dollars and grant money to allocate.

Using the land for parking during school events is also an issue. Daunielle has spoken
with Republic and reached an agreement that with a prior two-day notice, they will
allow CSD to use its property for overflow parking. They provided her with
stipulations regarding this arrangement. :

Danielle and Christine met with Pat and Susan to pick out the exterior color scheme
for the building. Silver was chosen for the main exterior; however, the original
selection has been changed to a more non-reflective quality.

Next Tuesday, Danielle will be going to Chicago to meet with CDM (the architects)
regarding use of their expertise with the few remaining hours CSD has left of their
purchased services. Finalizing the interior is the focus.

The budget is intact. '

- Director’s Report

A, Academic Report

~e  {SDis currently in acuity testing. This must be completed four times a year by

the State of Indiana. CSD also nses this testing as a teaching tool due toits -
similarity to ISTEP, which aliows the staff to make certain that the children can
read the directions and understand computer usage, This approach had a
positive impact on ISTEP last year, so this pattern was continued this school
year. '

o Christine is workmg on C3D's charter renewal, which is due December 14t

B. Enrollment

o Enrollment at ADM count day was 472, bemg 22 students over the projected
amount, which helps the budget,

e Waiting list - Kindergarten is completely full. There are three on the waxting
Hists for 3t grade, and seven for the 7t grade.

C Suspensions and Expulsions

@ There were 11 out-of-school suspensmns last month, mostly new smdenﬁs or
students who attended CSD previously, left, and returned, The points system Is
consistent and seems to be working well. The children have become more
inguisitive about how the points system works; wanting to make sure they do
not violate any rules. There was one finalized expulsion due to a student
shoving 4 teacher and security. The parent agreed that the child deserved to be
expelled,

D. Facilities

e Noupdate. Patch work is being done as neoded




- E. Cemmumty and Parent Event and Issues
- Alist of events was provided to the Board in the Director’s Report
‘e Parent University has been held a couple of times in the month. Topics that
parents requested are being covered during these sessions. Over 100 parents
responded as to the type of things they are intercsted in leaining about. Those
topics will be spread throughout the year, Quarter One Awards as well as
Parent Breakfast with the Principal are incentives for parent involvement and
feedback.
F. Financial Issues
»  OnSeptember 30, there were eight payroll issues Gf which three were non-
payments. This was discassed with Saul at the time it occurred. Payroll was ona
Friday and these employees were not paid until Wednesday. An incentive pay
was given to this them so that they could meet their bills for the week. A
discussion was also had with Tom and Camille regarding ways to make the
process more effective, Christine asked if an ABP sﬁmmary sheet could be
provided so that hours are verified. Upen submission of the summary sheet
during the following payroll peried, a couple of errors were caught and the
employees were able to be paid on time.
G Policies
o Christine sent out an email to the board members regarding the high schocl
concept discussed by Dr. Mike Bakalis. She atiached to the emall coples of the
information she received at the meeting with him. Dr. Bakalis is asking if CSD
would he interested in partnering with him in relation to the curriculum for the
new high school. Christine has asked the Board to review the information and
be prepareé to vote during the November board meeting. Ron raised the
guestion as to whether or not CSD staff should offer feedback regarding this
partnership. The Board will discuss in further detaﬂ after rewewmg the
information.
H. Staff
s (8D is fully staffed. )
o Between five to seven positions will need to be filled for next school year.
VIII.  AQS Comments/Updates '
¢ Thea Bowman renewed with AQS.
¢ Tom is pleased with the staff and the progress that has been made.
IX. Angela’s Pantry
s Ron made a suggestion to the Board to consider scheduhng a time to meet for
dinner at Angeia’s Pantry. It would be a nice social event for the Board as well as a
way to support a local business. Ron will send out an email notice to everyone.
X. Confirmation of next meeting
o The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, November 20, 2012 at 5:30 pan
X Adjournment: Motion to adjourn the meeting, Ron Cohen; seconded, Shalonda Drayton,
All were in favor.
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Christine Anne Pepa page 2

» Key Contributor to outdoor track and field renovation project

s Implemented first year of dress code at the high schooi

e Participated in expuision hearings and case conferences

e Coordinated commencement program

River Forest Community Schoois , Hobart, IN
Assistant Principal and Interim Junior High Principal August 2005 — June 2007

» Administrator in charge of high school discipline

¢ Teacher evaluations grades 7-12

+ NCA Intemal Chair

» Updated School Improvement Plan Junior and Senior High

» Facilitated programs to improve Math and English ISTEP scores

s Co-chair of restructuring committee for 7-12 curriculum and handbook

s Facilitator in establishing alternative school (Opened Fail 2008)

*  Administrator in charge of speciai education case conferences

» Key Contributor to renovation project

* School Safety Specialist

Crown Point High School Crown Point, IN
Mathematics Teacher June 1995 ~ Augqust 2005

e Algebra |, Algebra |l Geometry, ISTEP Remediation
e Tutored homebound students and local youths
s  Summer school remediation

Athletic Supervision

o FEight years experience: freshman to varsity levels
o Giris’ Varsity Athletic Club Sponsor

e Special Clympics basketball coach/coordinator

Softball Coach

+  Sectional Winner 2003

» Four years varsity experience

s Three years junior varsity experience

Freshman Basketball Coach
» Two years experience
» Assisted with State Runner-Up Team 1997

Wood Dale Junior High School Wood Dale, IL
Mathematics Teacher August 1994 — June 1995
e FEighth grade mathematics

» Tutored homebound student in all subjects

» Coached sixth grade girls basketball and assisted with seventh and eighth grade

Pascack Hills High School Montvale, NJ
Mathematics Teacher  November 1993 — June 1994
» Basic Geometry, Geometry, and Mathematics Lab

» Coached varsity basketball cheerleading and pom pons .




Christine Anne Pepa page 3

Personal Participation
Basketball Player
» Played varsity and junior varsity at Crown Point High School (1985-1989)

e Played for Valparaiso University (1989-1990)

Competitive Runner

e Marathon in Chicago: 2004, 2007, 2008

¢ Haif marathons in Chicago and Niagara Falls
o Various road races throughout the area

Education:

Indiana University Northwest , Gary, IN
o Master's Degree in Secondary Education, May 2005
o Administrative License, June 2005

Valparaiso University . Valparaiso, IN
B.S. Mathematics, August 1993

Minor: Secondary Education

s  Member of the National Council of Teachers of Mathematics

s Department of Education tutoring program for local youths

Professional Organizations:
o PhiDelta Kappa
NASSP
IASP
Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development
National Education Association, Indiana State Teachers Association, Crown Point
Teachers Association (1995-2005) '
e National Council of Teachers of Mathematics (1992-2005)

Professional Presentations:
e Praxis Workshop, Association of Teacher Educators, State Convention,
Nashville, IN, October 18, 2004
o Praxis Workshop, Association of Teacher Educators, National Conventlon
Chicago, IL, February 15, 2005

Other:

» Instructor for Math Praxis Workshop at Area Careér Center for School City of
Hammond (2007-2008)

» Instructor for Para Professional Workshop at Northwest Indiana Education Service
Center (2006-2007)

» National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education (NCATE) student advisor for
IUN graduate education and administration programs (2005)

s Received recognition as Most Influential Teacher from a Valedictorian (2005) and a
Salutatorian (2002)

s Instructor for Math Praxis Workshop at Indiana Umversuty Northwest and Purdue
University Calumet
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DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
WASHINGTON, b.C. 20224

TAX EXEMEY Akb
ADVERHUELT ERTTILE

FIVISION
Data: , - Emplover (dentificalion Numboer:
AUG 17 2003 260016999
lesuing Specializt
Bruce Lawiz, 50-18075
Charlar School of the Dunes, Inc. Talf Frae Cuslomer Seqvicit:
afo Linds J, Slinan, Lord, Bissell & Brook BT T-B23-5500
115 South Lasalle Steet #3400 Accounting Perind Ending:
Chicago, ll. 60803 . : Decamber 31
Foundation Stalue Classifeation;
500} 1) & 170N AN
Form 980 Required;
Yes
Bear Applicant:

Bazed an the Information supplied, and assuming your operalions will be as slated n your
applicaton for recegnilion of exemplion, we have detemmined you afe exempt from federal
income L ender section 504{a} of he Inlernal Reverus Code us an organization dagcribed i
seclion H01{ckI) :

We have further defermined that you are nol a private foundation within the meaning of
section 5090a) of he Code, becaise you are an ofganization describad in the seclion{z)
indicated above, '

Revenue Procodure 75-50, 1975-2 C.B, 687, sats forth guldelines and recardkeeping
raquirements for determining whether private schaols have racially nondisciiminatory policies as
to students. You are oxespled from complying with this revenus piocedure as long as you
opetate 55 a Charter school. Should you no longer operate under the Charter you wili have to
comply with the revante pracedure lo malttain your e-exampl status.

Pleaze nolify the Ohio Tax Exemipl and Government Entities (TE/GE) Customear Sewvice
office if thara is any change k your nams, adrness, souress aof suppor, putposes, or method of
oparation, If you amend your erganizetional decument or bylaws, please sand a copy ofths
amendment to the Ohio TE/GE Customer Service office. The malling address for thal office is:
intarteal Revenus Servee, TEIGE Gustamer Sevics, P.O. Box 2508, Cincinnati, OH 45201,

You are liable for taxes under the Federal lnsurance Conlributions Aal {sactal secusity
taxes) on remunerallon of $100 o mote you pay to each of your emplayess during & calendar
yaar. Yau are not liable for the tax imposed under the Federal Unesployment Tax Act,

If you are irvolved in an excess benefil iransacilon; that ransaclion might be subjact to the
axclug faxey of secticn 4058 of the Code, In this lellar we are not delermining whether any of
your present or proposed arangemanis wauld be considersd an excoss benefil (ranzaction
resulling in lax under seclion 4858, Additionafly, yau are ot aulomatically exempt from ot
foderal axcize lares,
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Charter-School of the Dunes, Inc.

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of the Code,
Bequests, (egacies, devises, transfers, or gifis fo you or for your use are deductible for federal
estate and gift tax purposes if they meet the applicable provisions of Code sections 2055, 21086,
and 2522, _

Donors (including private foundations) may rely on this ruling unless the Internal Revenue
Service publishes notlce to the contrary. However, if you lose your 509(a) sfatus as indicated
above, donors {other than private foundations) may not rely on the classification indicated ahove
if they were In part respongible for, or were aware of, the act that resulted in your loss of such
status, or they acquired knowledge that the Internal Revenue Seérvice had given nolice that you
woitld be removed from that classification. Private foundations may rely on the classification as
long as you were not directly or Indirectly controlled by them or by disqualified persons with
respect to them. However, private foundations may not rely on the classification Indicated
ahove if they acquired knowledge that the Intemal Revenue Service had given notice that you
would be removed from that classification. '

Confribution deductions are allowabie to donors only to the extent that their contribulions
are gifts, with no consideration received. Ticket purchases and similar payments in conjunclion
with fund-raising svents may not necessarily qualify as fully deductible contributions, depending
on the circumstances, If Your ofganization conducts fund-ralsing avents such as bensfit
dinners, shows, membership drives, elc., where something of value is received in retum for

be made, at the latest, at the time payment is racelved. Subject to certain exceptions, your
disclosure responsibility appliss to any fund-ralsing circumstance where each complete
paymen, including the contdbution portion, exceads $75. In addition, donors must have written
substantiation from the charity for any charitable conribution of $250 or more,

in the heading of this letter we have Indicated wheiher you must file Form 990, Return of
Organization Exempt from Income Tax. If "Yes"js indicated, you are required fo file Form 990
only If your gross receipts each year are normally more than $25,000, I your gross recelpls
oach year are not normally more than $26,000, we ask that you estabiish that you are not
required to file Form 990 by completing Part | of that Form for your first year, Thereafter, you
wilt not be required to file 4 return until your gross recelpts exceed the $25,000 minimum. For
guidance In determining If your gross receipts are “normally” not more than the $25,000 fimit,
see the instructions for the Form 990, f a return is required, it tnust be filed by the 15th day of
the fifth month after the end of your annual accounting period, A penalty of $20 a day is
charged when a retum is filed late, unless there Is feasonable cause for the delay. The
maximum penalty charged cannot exceed $10,0000r 5 percent of your gross receipts for the
year, whichever is less, For arganizations with gross receipls exceeding $1,000,000 In any
year, the penalty is $100 per day per refurn, unless there is reasonable cause for the delay, The
maximum penafly for an organization with gross receipts exceeding $1,000,000 shall not
exceed $50,000, This penalty may also be charged if a return fs not complete, so please be _
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Charter Schoo! of the Dunes, Inc,

sure your return is complete before you file it. Form 990 shoyld be filed with the Ogden Service
Center, Ogden, UT 84201-0027.

quired to make your Form 990 avallable for public inspection for three years

. Yoti are re
after the later of the due date of the return or the date the return is filed. You are also required

fo make avaifable for public inspection your exemplion application, any supporting docutnents,

You are not required to fils federal income tax returns unless you are subject to the tax on
unrelated business income under section 541 of the Code. If you are subject to this tax, you
must file an income tax return on Form 990-T, Exempt Organization Business Income Tax
Return, In this tetter we are not determining whether any-of your preseni or proposed aclivities
are unrelated trade or business as defined in section 513 of the Code.

letter could help resolve any questions aboui your exempt status, you should keep.itin your

~ permanent fecords. H you have any questions about this letter, or about flling requirements,

excise, employment, or other federal taxes, please confaci the Ohio TE/GE Customer Service
office at 877-826-5500 {a toll frea number) or correspond with that office using the address
Indicated above. .

Sincerely,

MM ﬂ_ ?M

Debra J, Kawecki
Acting Manager,
Exempt Organizations
Techrilcal Group 4
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i) SEB&?%R%?OF $YALE ARTIGLES OF INCORPORATION
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ncorporation,
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109 N. Yanderburg Gaty e
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Tha purposog o which the Coporation Is (oaned eto;

The purpase of the Carporation is o establish and run a charler schood inihe slale of Indiana. The purposes for which the
cotpotation is organized are exclusively religious, charilablo, sconfific, fiterary and educallonat within the meaning of section
503{c)(3) of Ure Intemal Ravanue Code of 1985 or the corresponding provisian of any falute United States Intemal Revemso
law, Nolwithstanding any other provisions of these articles, (s erganizatlon shall not carry on any aclivitios not pemniled io
e carried on by an organization sxemp! from Federal Income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the fnlernal Revenua Code of
986 or the corresgonding provision of any fulure Unlfed Stales Internal Rovenue law.

on the dissolution of the organization, aseels shall be distibuled lor one of more exempt purpases within e meaning of
seclion 501(c){3) of the Intamal Revenue Code of 1986, or correspanding seclion of any biture Faderal (ax code, or shal be
distituled to the Fedaral, state or local govemtnont for a public putpose, Any such 95s0is nol so disposed of shafi be

disposed of by a cout of competent jurisdiclion of the county in which the principat office of {he otganizafion is then located,
axclusively for such purposes. :
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ARTICLES OF INGORPORATION
IND. SECRETARY OF STRTE
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This Goepocafion exisls p tHa; (check apgadtisie box}

1 The Indipna Net-For-Piofit Coiporation Ack of 1971 (IC 23.7-1.1) as amended.
11 Indana Genelal Hot-For-Profil Corporatian Adt {appioved March ¥, 1835)

) indiana Nonprol Tospotation Act of 1991 {1C 23-17-1) a3 amondsd

S GHRTIC neils)
Charter School of the Dunes, Inc.

SECTION 2. The date of imcospresiivn of 1he Cosporason s’

January 2, 2002

SECHON Tat nomp gtthe Cosporation lofoning (b dmentio the Ariies of Incetporsbon s, K
Charter School of the Dunes, Iac.

SECYION 4

The exactlenl 1 Anickels)

e s m e o ThIDE AliCHas ol lntorporation s now s fofows

Upon the diseelution of the ovganization, ail remaining fuonds received from the
Indiana Department of Education (*Bepartment™) shsll be returned o the Department
net more than thirty {36) days after dissolutionm, and ail vemaining assets shall Dbe
distributed for non-profit educational purposes as determined under 1G 29-5.5-3-3

as amendad or any successor provision therero (which non-profit educational

purpeses shall constitule an exenpt PUrpese githin the meaning of section 50:(c}(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986), or shall be distributed to the federal, state,
or local governmment For a public educational pnrpose.

Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by a court of competent
jurisdiction of the county in which the principal office of the organizatien is
then located, exclusively for non-prefit educational puvposca as defined above.
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Bxhibit A

BV-LAWS OF |
CHARTER SCHOOY, OF THE DUNES, INC.

ARTICLE {-

NAMYE, AND PURPOSES

SECTION 1. NAME. The name of the corporation shall be Charter School of the
Dunes, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

SECTION 2. OFFICES. The Corporation shall contiouously maijntain in the
State of Indiana a registered office located at 860 North Lake Street, Gavy, Indiana
46403, and a registered agent whose office is identical with such registered office and
may have other offices within or without the state.

SECTION 3. FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the Corporation shail be fixed
by resolution of the Board of Directors. Initially, it shall begin on the first day of
July and end on the last day of June each year.

SECTION 4. PURPOSES. The purposes for which the Corporation is formed, as
stated in its Articles of Incorporation (the “Articles™), are to establish and run a charter
schoo! in the state of Indiana for the benefit of the childven of the community (the
“Charter School”) and to engage in any other activities incidental to the foregoing
purposes for which a corporation may be otganized under the Indiana Nonprofit
Corporation Act of 1991; provided, however, that the Carporation is organized and shall
at all times be operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scieatific, fiterary and
educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(¢)(3) of the Tnternal Revenue
Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future U nited States Internal
Revenue Law).

No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributable to, its Directors or officers or other private persons, except that the
Corporation shalf be authorized and empowered lo pay reasonabie compensation for
secvices rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes
set Torth in its Articles. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall
consist of carrying on propaganda or otherwise atlerapting to influence legislation, and
the Corporation shall not participate in, o infervene in (including the publishing or
distribution of statements), any political campaign on behatf of (or in opposition to) any
candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of its Articles, the -
Corporation shali not carry on any activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by an
organization exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(e)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States
iyternal Revenne Law) or (b) by an otganization, coniributions o which are deductible




under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding
provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

Upon dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors of the Corporation,
after paying or making adequate provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the
Corporation, shall distribute ail of the assets of the Corporation to such organization or

organizations as the Board of Directors shall determine; provided, however, that the
assets of the Corporation shall be distributed only to organizations which at the time of
such distribution are exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 (c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United
States Tnternal Revenue Law). Any assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the -
Circuit Court of the county in which the principal office of the Cotporation is then
located, exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary and educational purposes
or to such organization or organizations as said Court shall determine which are
organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

Charter School of the Dunes, Inc. admits students of any tace, color, national and
ethnic origin to all the rights, privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or
made available to students at the school. It does not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national and ethaic origin in the administration of its educational policies,
admissions policies, scholarship and loan programs, and athletic or other school-
administered programs.




ARTICLE Y
MEMBERS

The Corporation shall have no members.

ARTICLE XY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. GENERAL POWERS. The affairs of the Corporation shall be
managed by or under the direction of its Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall
have supervision, control and direction of the affairs of the Corporation, shall elect its
officers, shall determine its policies within the Articles and By-Laws of the Corporation,
shall actively pursue its objectives and shall have discretion in the disbursement of its
funds. It may adopt such rules and regulations for the conduct of its business as shall be
deemed advisable and may, in the execution of its powers, appoint such agents as it may
consider necessary. The Board has uliimate responsibility to determine general,
academic, financial, personnel and related policies desmed necessary for the
administration and development of the Charter School in accordance with its stated
purposes and goals. More specifically, the Board’s authority shall be without limitation:

(8)  To approve policies and procedures regarding employment, including but
not limited fo, appointment, _promotion, coniracts, leaves of absence,
fringe benefits, qualifications of professional and nonprofessional staff,
professional development and dismissal of employees;
(b)  To adopt curriculum or courses of study and text books;
(¢)  To authorize the acquisition, management and disposition of all property
and physical facilities, having due respect for the corporate purpose,
inchuding the construction, renovation and upkeep of the physical plant;
(d)  To make contracts and leases for the procurement of services, equipment
and supplies; :
(&)  To incur temporary debts in anticipation of the receipt of funds;
() To establish the annual academic catenda;
()  'To adopt and approve the annual budget and o make revisions theretn;
' (h)  To establish admissions policies and procedures;
(D) To adopt and approve policies and procedures to assess stucent

zchievement;
(H To approve or ratify all contracts; :
(k)  To authorize an annual audit by axt independent certified public
accountant; :
) To appoint or dismiss the Principal of the Charter School,

m To fix the salary or other compensation of the Principal, teachers and other
] B
employees of the Charter School;
(n)  To designate depositories of Charter School funds; and




{0)  To have and exercise all of the powers and means appropriate to effect the
purpose ot purposes for which the Charter School is chartered.

SECTION 2. NUMBER, TENURE AND QUALIFICATIONS. The Board of
Directors shall consist of a minimum of seven (7) persons. Except for the initial
Directors, Directors shall serve for a four-year term. Two of the initial Directors shall
serve two-year terms, two shall serve three-year terms and three shall serve four-year
terms. Directors to replace those with expiring terms shall be elected annually by the
Board of Directors at the regular annual mecting of the Board of Directors, If the
election of Directors shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon
thereafter as conveniently possible. Each Director shall hold office until his ot her
successor shall have been duly elected and qualified, or until his or her death, or until he
or she shall resign or be removed in the manner hereinafter provided

At all times all members of the Board of Directors shall be residents of the State of
Indiana, and at least one-half of the members of the Board of Directors shall be restdents
of the Indiana counties where current students at the charter school reside.

The number of Directors may be decreased to not fewer than three or increased to
any nwmber from time to time by amendment of this section, No decrease shall have the
effect of shortening the term of an incumbent Director. A Director may serve
consecutive terms.

SECTION 3. REGULAR MEETINGS. A regular annual meeting of the Board
of Directors shali be held during the month of July, at such time and place as may be
fixed by the President, ox if the President is for any reason unable to act, by any two

Directors. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place for the
holding of additional regular meetings of the Board without other notice than such
' resclution.

The Board of Directors shall hold regular monthly mectings, at such date, time
and place as may be fixed by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board of Directors
may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors, The person or
persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board may fix any place as the place

for holding any special mesting of the Board called by them.

The Board of Dircctors may hold special meetings for any lawful purpose upon not less
than one (1) day notice, as described in Scetion 6 of this Article II, upon call by the Chalr
ot by bwo {2) or moré members of the Board of Directors. A special meeting shall be held

at such date, time, and place inside the State of Indiana or elsewhere as specified in the

cali of the meeting.




SECTION 5. NOTICE. Notice of the regular annual meeting and any special
meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least five days previous thereto by
writlen notice to each Director at his or her address as shown by the records of the
Corporation, except that no special meeting of Directors fay remove a Director unless
written notice of the proposed removal is delivered to all Directors at least 20 days prior
to such meeting, If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited
in the United States mail in a sealed envelope so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid.
Notice of the regular annual meeting or any special meeting of the Board of Directors
may be waived in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to the notice either
before or after the time of the mesting. The attendance of 2 Director at any meeting shall
constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting
for the express purpose of objecting Lo the transaction of any business because the
meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor
the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice
or wajver of notice of such meeting, unless specifically required by law or by these By-
Laws. Public notice of meetings shall be given in accordance with the requirements of
applicable law.

Oral notice shall be effective when communicated, Written, electronic, or tele-faxed
notice, where applicable, shall be effective at the carliest of the following:
(a) When teceived;

(b) Five (5) days after the notice is mailed, as evidenced by the postmark or
private carrier receipt, if mailed correctly addressed to the address listed in the
most cwrrent records of the Corporation;

{c) On the date shown on the retun receipt, if sent by registered or certified
United States mail, return receipt requested, and the receipt is signed by or on
behalf of the addressee; or

(d) Thirty (30) days after the notice is deposited with another method of the
United States Postal Service other than fivst class, registered, or certified mail, as
evidenced by the postmark, if mailed correstly addressed to the address listed in

the most current records of the Corperation.

SECTION 6. WATVER OF NOTICE. Notice of a meeting may be waived ina
writing signed by the director entitled to notice and filed with the minutss or the
corporate records. Attendance at or participation in auy meetiog of the Board of

Directors shall constitute a waiver of lack of notice or defective notice of such

meeting unless the director shall, at the beginning of the mesting o promptly

upon the director’s arrival, object to holding the meeting and not vote for or
assent to any action taken at the meeting.




SECTON 7. ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT. Any action required or permitted to
be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors, or any commities thereof, may be
(aken without a meeting if a written consent describing such action is signed by each

director or committes member and if such written consent is included in the mimytes or

£iled with the Corporation’s records reflecting the aclion taken. Action taken by written
consent shall be effective when the last direclor ot comimittes member signs the consent
and the Board of Directors raifies the action taken in a subsequent meeting held pursuant
+0 the Indiana Open Door Law, unless the consent specifies a prior or subsequent
effective date. A consent signed as described in this Sestion 8 shall-have the effect of
approval at a meeting and may be deseribed as such in any

SECTION 8, QUORUM. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a
quornm for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, provided
that if less than a majority of the Directors are present at said meeting, a majority of the
Directors present may adjourn the meeting to another time without further notice.

SECTION 6. MANNER OF ACTING. The act of a majority of the Directors
present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of
Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by statute, these By-Laws, or the
Articles. No Director may act by proxy on any matter.

SECTION 10. VACANCIES. Any vacancy pecurring in the Board of Directors
or any Directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors shall
be filled by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 11. RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS. A Director
may resign at any time upon written notice to the Board of Directors. A Director may be
removed with or without cause by majority vote of the Board of Directors.

. Resignation, Removal, and Vacancies. Any director may resign at any time by
- giving written notice of such resipnation to the Board of Directors, the Chair, or the
Seeretary of the Corporation. Such resignation shali take effect at the time specified
therein, of if no time is specified, at the time of its receipt by the Board of Directors, the
Chair, ot the Secretary. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it
effective. A director may be removed for cause by a majority of the directors then in
office. Cause shall include, but shall not be limited to;

(a) Violations of applicable law, inchuding (but not Hmited to): () V iclations of -
the Tndiana Charter School Law; and (ii) Actions that would jeopardize the tax-
exempt status of the Corporation or would subject it to ntermediate sanctions
wnder the Tnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or corresponding
provigions of any subsequent federal tax laws {the “Code”).

(b) Breach of fiduciary duty, inchuding (but not limited to) & violation of the
applicable standard of care under the Articles, these Bylaws, or applicable law.




(¢) Breach of any goverming document relatiag to the Corporation, including
limited to) the Auticles, these Bylaws, and the Charter Agreement,

(d) Inadequate attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors, defined as from
four (4) consecutive meetings or from at least fifty 50 percent (50%) of such
meetings within one {1) calendar year. Any vacancy on the Board of Directors
created by the resignation or removal of director shalf be filled by a majority of
the directors then in office.

Section 10. Educational Management Organizations. Should the Board of
Directors engage an educational managemens organization (“EMO”) to manage
the operations charter school for which the Corporation is responsible (the
“School™), no member of the Corporation’s Board of Directors may have any
pecuniary interest in such EMO,

SECTION 12, INFORMAL ACTION BY DIRECTORS. The authority of the
Board of Directors may be exercised without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting
forth the action faken, is signed by all of the Directors entitled fo vote.

SECTION 13. PAYMENT OF EXPENSES. By resolution of the Board of
Directors, the Directors may be paid their expenses, if awy, of performing work
authorized by the Board. No such payment previously mentioned in this section shall
preclude any Director from serving the Corporation in any other capacn‘.y and receiving
reasonable compensation £hexef01

SECTION 14, PRESUMPTION GF ASSENT. A Director of the Corporation
who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on any corporate
matter is taken shall be conclusively presumed to have assented {o the action taken unless
his or her dissent shall be entered in the minufes of the meeting or unless he or she shall
file his or her written dissent to such action with the person acting as the secretary of the
meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered or
certified mail to the Secretary of the Corporation immediatety after the adjowrnment of
the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Director who voted in favor of
such action,

SECTION 15. EXECUTIVE SESSICN. Aa executive session is the portion of a
meeting of only the Board of Directors and thoss they may invite for the purpose of the
executive session, When an executive session is necessary, it shall be held near the end

of the meeting. An executive session shall be held ouly for the discussion of the
following:

a} Any matter of litigation, either pending or the Laitiation of, in which an attorney
could be involved,

b} The purchase or lease of real property up to the tite a contract or eption to
purchase or lease is execuied by the parties.




¢) To receive information about, and/or interview prospective employees,

d) With respect to any individual staff mermber in terms of contract, job
performance evaluation, staff assignment and petsonnel files.

¢) To discuss personal matters concerning & member of the corporation or child, -

The secretary shall keep minutes of all business conducted in an executive session.
Board members present for such sessions shall vote approval of said minutes. The vote
on any issue shall not take place during executive session. Only the discussion on issues
concerning the above five reasons shall take place in executive session,

ARTICLETV
OFTFICERS

SECTION |. OFFICERS. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a
Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer and such other officers as may be elected or
appointed by the Board of Directors. Officers whose authority and duties are not
prescribed in these By-Laws shall have the authority and perform the duties prescribed,
from time fo time, by the Boatd of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by
the same person.

SECTION 2. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE. The officers of the
Corporation shall be elected annually for a term of one (1) year by the Board of Divectors
at the regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors unless the Board by resolution
establishes a different term. 1T the election, of officers shall not be held at such meeting,
such elfection shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. Vacancies may be
filled or new offices created and filled at ary meeting of the Board of Directors. Each
officer shall hold office for one (1) year or until his or her successor shall have been duly
elected and qualified, or until his or her death, or until he or she shall resign or be
removed in the manner hereinafter provided. Election of an officer shall not of itself
create contract rights.

'SECTION 3. RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL OF OFFICERS. Any officer
elected or appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Direciors
whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby,
but such removal shal! be without prejudice to the conlract rights, if any, of the person so
removed. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to the Board of

Directors. '

SECTION 4. PRESIDENT. The President shall be the pfincipal executive officer
of the Corporation. Subject to ths direction and control of the Board of Directors, he o
she shail be in charge of the business and affaiss of the Corporation; he or she shall see




that the Tesolutions and directives of the Board of Directors are carried into effect except
in those instances in which that responsibility is assigned to some other person by the
Board of Directors; and, in general, he or she shall discharge all duties incident to the
office of president and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.
Except in those instances in which the authority to execute is expressly delegated to
another officer or agent of the Corporation or a different mode of execution is expressly
prescribed by the Board of Directors or these By-Laws, he or she may execute for the
Corporation any contracts, deeds, mortgages, bonds, or other instruments which the
Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, and he or she may accomplish such
execution cither under or without the seal of the Corporation and either individually or
with the Secretary, any assistant secretary, ot any other officer thereunto authorized by
the Board of Directors, according to the requirements of the form of the instrument. He
or she may vote all securitics which the Corporation is entitled to vote except as and to
the extent such authority shall be vested in a different officer or agent of the Corporation
by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 5. VICE PRESIDENT. The Vice President shall perform such duties
as shall be assigned to him by the President or the Board of Directors. Further, in the
absence of the President or in the event of his inability or refusal to act, the Vice
President shall perform the duties of the President and, when so acting, shall have all the
powers of and be subject {o all the restrictions upon the President.

SECTION 6. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall record the minutes of the
meetings of the Board of Directors in one or mote books provided for that purpose; see
that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as

required by law; be custodian of the corpotate records and of the seal of the Corporation;
and perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from
time to time may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Divectors.

SECTION 7. TREASURER, If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer
shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his or her duties in such sum and with such
surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Treasurer shall have
charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Corporation;
receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Corpotation from any source
whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Corporation in such banks,
trust companies or other depositoties as shall be selected by the Board of Directors; and
in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties
as from time to time may be assigned by the President or by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 8. SALARIES. No member of the Board of Directors s entitied to
compensation.




ARTICLE YV
COMMIT TEES

SROTION 1. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS. The Board of Directors, by
resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, may designate one ot wore
committees, each of which shall consist of two or more Directors and such other persons
as the Board of Directors designates, provided that a majorily of each committee’s
membership are Directors. The committees, to the extent provided in said resofution and
not restricted by law, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Dizectors in
the management of the Corporation; but the designation of such cornmittecs and the
delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any
individual Director, of any responsibility imposed upon it, him or her by law.

SECTION 2. TERM OF OFFICE. Each member of a committee shall continue
as such until his or her successor is appointed, unless the committee shall be sooner
terminated, or unless such member be removed from such committes by the Board of
Directors, or unless such member shall cease to qualify asa member thereof.

SECTION 3. CHAIRMAN. Oue member of each commities shall be appointed
chajrmarn.

SECTION 4.. VACANCIES. Vacancies in the membership of any committes
may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the
original appointments.

SECTION 5. QUORUM. Ugless otherwise provided in the resolution of the

Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall

constitute a quorum, and the act of a majority of the members present at & meeting at
which a quoruin is present shall be the act of the committee.

SECTION 6. RULES. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government
not inconsistent with these By-Laws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 7. INFORMAL ACTION. The authotity of a committee may be

exercised without a meefing if a consent in writing, setting forth the action taken, is
signed by all of the members entitled to vote.

ARTICLE VI
SECTION 1. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST GENERAL POLICY.
it is the policy of the Corporation and its Board of Directors that the

Corporation’s directors, ofiicess, and employees to carry out their respective
duties in a fashion that avoids actual, potential, or perceived contlicts ot interest,




The Corporation’s divectors, officers, and employees shall have the continuing,
affirmative duty to report any personal ownership, interest, or other relationship
that might affect their ability to exexcise impartial, ethical, and business-based
judgments in fulfilling their responsibilities to the Coxporation, This policy shall
be further subject to the following principles: )

(8) Directors, officers, and employees of the Corporation shall conduct their
duties with respect to potential and actual grantees, contractors, suppliers,
agencies, and ofher persons fransacting ot seeking to transact business with the
Corporation in a completely impartial manner, without favor or preference based
upon any consideration other than the best interests of the Corporation.

(b) Directors, officers, and employees of the Corporation shall not seek or accept
for themselves or any of their relatives (including spouses, ancestors, and
descendants, whether by whole or half blood), from any person or business entity
that transacts or seeks to transact business with the Corporation, any gifis,
entertainment, or other favors relating to their positions with the Corporation that
exceed common courtesies consistent with ethical and accepted business

practices.

(c) If a director, or a director’s relative, directly or indirectly owns a significant
financial inferest in, or is employed by, any business entity that transacts or secks
to transact business with the Corporation, the director shall disclose that interest

or position and shall refrain from voting on any issue pertaining to the transaction,

(d) Officers and employees of the Corporation shail not conduct business on
behalf of the Corporation with a relative ot a business entity in which the officer,
employee, or his or her relative owns a significant financial interest or by which
such officer, employee, or relative is employed, except where such dealings have

been disclosed to, and specifically approved and authorized by, the Board of

Directors of the Corporation.

{e) The Board of Directors may requive the Corporation’s directors, officers, or
employees to complete anonally (or as otherwise scheduled by the Board) a
disclosure statoment regarding any actual ot potential conflict of interest
described in these Bylaws, The disclosure statement shall be in such form as may
be presctibed by the Board and may include information regarding a person’s
participation as a director, trustee, officer, or employes of any other nonprofit
organization, The Board of Directors shall be responsible for oversight of all
disciosures or failures to disclose and for taking appropriate action i the case of
any actual or potential conflict of interest tranisaction.




SECTION 2. BFFRECT OF CONFLICT PROFIVISIONS. | The failure of the
Corporation, its Board of Directors, or any or all of its divectors, officers, or
employees to comply with the conflict of interest provisions of these Bylaws shall
- not invalidate, cancel, void, or make veidable any contract, relationship, action,
transaction, debt, commmitment, or obligation of the Corporation that otherwise is

valid and enforceable under applicable law. '

ARTICLE VII |
CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS AND GIFTS

SECTION 1. CONTRACTS. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer
or officers or agent or agents of the Corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized
by these By-Laws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the
name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined

to specific instances, ‘

SECTION 2. CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC. All checks, drafts or other orders for
the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued i the name of the
Corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers or agent or agents of the
Corporation and in such mamer as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of
the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors,
such instruments shall be signed by the President of the Corporation, the Vice President

of the Corporation or the Secretary of the Corporation.

SECTION 3. DEPOSITS. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from
time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies ot other
depositories as the Board of Directors may select.

SECTION 4. GIFTS. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the
Corporation any coniribution, gift, bequest or devise {or the general purposes or for any
special purpose of the Corporation.

ARTICLE Vill
BOOKS AND RECOHDS
The Cotporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of account

and shall also keep minutes of the proceedings of its Board of Dicectors and committecs '
having any of the authority of the Board of Dirgctors.

ARTICLE IX




WAIVER OF NOTICE

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Indiana
Nonprofit Corporation Act of 1991 or under the provisions of the Articles or the By-Laws
of the Corporation, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person ox persons entitled to
such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be decmed equivalent to

the giving of such notice. Attendance at any meeting shall constitute waiver of notice
thereof unless the person at the meeting objects to the holding of the meeting becanse
proper notice was not given. '

ARTICLE X
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors shall adopt a formal investment policy with respect to the
management of the Corporation’s investment portfolio. At least annually, the Board of
Directors shall (a) review the Corporation’s investments and applicable prudence,
liquidity and diversification standards and (b) examine actual investments and investment
alternatives in depth by (i) compating actual investment vesults to the results reported for
alternative investments; (i) comparing the characteristics of alternative investments and
investment vehicles; and (ii) examining and reconsidering the investment management
policy.




ARTICLE XX
MOEMNIFICATION

SECTION 1. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS OTHER THAN BY ORIN
RATION, The Corporation may indemnify any person

THE RIGHT OF THE CORPO
who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party fo any threatened, pending or
completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative o1
by or in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the

investigative (other than an action
£act that he or she is or was a Director, officer, employee o agent of the Corporation, of
is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Director, officer, employee or
trast or other enterprise, against

agent of another Corporation, partnership, joint venture,
expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlernent

actually and reasonably incurred by such person it connection with such action, suit or
proceeding, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably
believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, and, with
respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his ov her
conduet was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment,
order, settlement, conviction, or upona plea of nolo confendere or its equivalent, shall
not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a
mahner which he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests
| action or proceeding, that the person

of the Corporation or, with respect to any crimina
had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.

SECTION 2. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY OR IN THE RIGHT OF
THE CORPORATION. The Corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a
party, or is threateped to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action
dement in its favor by reason of

or suit by ox in the right of the Corporation to procure a ju
the fact that such person is or was a Director, officer, employee or agent of the

Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Director, officer,
riership, joint venture, trust ot other

employee or agent of another Corporation, part
enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred
defease or settlement of such action or suit, 1f such

by such person in connection with the
-person acted in good faith and in 2 anner he ot she reasonably believed to be in, or not
no indemnification shall

opposed to, the best interests of te Corporation, provided that
be made in respect of any clatm, issue or matier as to which such person shall have been

adjudged to be lable for negligence ov misconduct in the performance of his or her duty
to the Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such action ot

suit was brought shall detexmins upon application that, despite the adjudication of
¢, such person is fairly and

liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the cas
yeasonably entitled to indernnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.
SECTION 3. RIGHT TO PAYMENT OF EXPENSES. To the exte

Joyec or agent of the Corporation has been successful, on the merits
v getion, suit or proceeding referred to in Sections 1 and

it thal a

Director, officer, emp
or otherwise, in the defense of an




9 of this Article, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, such pegson shall be
indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incuwred
by such person in connection therewith.

, SECTION 4, DETERMINATION OF CONDUCT. Any indemnification under
Sections | and 2 of this Article (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the
Corporation only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that
indemmnification of the Director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances
because he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 1 ot 2
of this Article. Such determination shall be made (a) by the Board of Directors by a
majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who were not parties to such action,
suit or proceeding, or (b) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or even if obtainable, ifa
quorum of disinterested Directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written

opinion. ~

SECTION 5. PAYMENT OF EXPENSES IN ADVANCE. Expenses incumted in
defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Corporation in
advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding, as authorized by the
Board of Directors in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of
the Director, officer, employee or agent to repay such atmount, unless it shall ultimately
be determined that hie or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as
authorized in this Article.

SECTION 6. INDEMNIFICATION NOT EXCLUSIVE. The indemnification
provided by this Arlicle shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those
seeking indemnification may be entitled under any by-law, agreement, vote of members

or disinterested Directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity
and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to 2
person who has ceased to be a Director, officer, employes or agent, and shall inure to the
benefit of the heirs, exceutors and administrators of such a person.

SECTION 7. TNSURANCE. The Corporation may purchase and mainiain
insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee or agent of
the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Direclor,

officer, employee or agent of another Corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise, against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such
person in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether ot not the
Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such Lability urder
the provisions of this Axticle.

SECTION 8. NOTICE TO MEMBERS. If the Corporation has paid indemaity
or nas advanced expenses under this Article to a Director, officer, employee oragent, the
Corporation shall report the indemnification or advance in writing to any members
entitied to vote with or before the notice of the next meeting of the members entitled to

vote, '




SECTION 9. REFERENCES TO CORPORATION. For purposes of this Axticle,
teferences to "the Corporation” shall include, in addition to the surviving Corporation,
any morging Corporation (including any Corporation having merged with a wmerging
Covporation) absorbed in a merger which, if its separate existence had continued, wonld
have had the power and authority to indemnify its Directors, officers, smployees or
agents, so that any person who was a Director, officer, employee or agent of such
merging Corporation, or was serving at the request of such merging Cotporation as a
Director, officer, employee or agent of another Corporation, partrership, joint venture,
trust or other enterprise, shall stand in the same position under the provisions of this
Article with respect to the surviving Corporation as such person would have with respect
to such merging Corporation if its separate existence had continued.

SECTION 10. OTHER REFERENCES, For purposes of this Asticle, references
to "other enterprises” shall include employee benefit plans; references to *fines" shall
include any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employce benefit plan;
and references 1o "serving at the request of the Corporation” shall mclude any service as a
Direclor, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation which imposes duties on, or
involves services by such Director, officer, employee, or agent with respect to an
employee benefit plan, its participants, or beneficiaries. A person who acted in good
faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in the best intevests of the
. participants and beneficiaries-of an empleyee benefit plan shail be deemed to have acted
in a manner "not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation" as refersed to in this
Atrticle.

ARTICLE X
AMENDMENTS

The power to alter, amend ot repeal the By-Laws or adopt new By-Laws shall be
vested in the Board of Directors. Such action may be taken at a yegular or special
meeting for which written notice of the putpose shall be given. The By-Laws may

contain any provisions for the regulation and management of the affairs of the
Corposation not inconsistent with law or the Articles.
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To establish a guideline for defining confiict of mierast ana to u@ n the wndersiznding of

what may happen shouvld a conflict of interest exist.

Bodlaioiat

It is the policy of Charter L,rhool of the Dungs to conduct its business oractices wib the

nighest level of integrity. A conflict of jnterest exists when a member of Charter Schoo!
of the Dunes family does not act with total objectivity in carrying out their dutieg Jor the
organization, thus placing their personal goals or interests fixst.

Charter School of the Dunes participates in government prograins and there is zero
tolerance for accepting or offering gifts, payments, and kickbacks in connection wity
government programs and contracts. '

Procedure:
A, All Emplovees
1. To avoid conflicts of interest, all employees must adbere to the following:

a. Inmediatcly report to the Board of Directors any financial or personal
interest that they or any member of their family has doing business witli
Charter School of the Dunes. Family is described as a spouss, son,

stepson, daughter, stepdaughter, brother, sister, cousin, and any in-lews.

b. Refrain from acoepting gifts of money, Ttems or services, except ior
congumable iterris of modest value that may be shared by co-workers.

¢, Refrain from using or disclosing information that may be acquired 2¢ 2
resuli of their employment for personal gain or benefit.

d. Place the interest of the organization Orst.

. Report to ihe Board of Directors any potential viclations of this pokicy

tion, employees shonld not Lave uteide ernpl: )yrrlem or businsse
interests thet place them in & pogiticn of

- Cherrer School of the Dunes or auy antilizter or

i
v, productivity, or dedication to Charler Schoo]
ag their everycay duties upon hire.




Upon hire, employees must immediately notify the Board of Directors of any
potential conflicts of inferest at any time during the course of their
employment with Charter School of the Dunes. Faihure to disclose potential
condlicts of interest at any time during employruent will result in disciplinary
action up to and inchiding texmination. '

Any personal or business activities of an employse that may raise conflict of
interest concerng must be reviewed in advancs by the school’s Board of
Direciors.

B. Supervisors, Managers, and Above

1.

In addition to the requiremnents of (A) above, supervisors, managers, and
others above may not be employed by, act as a consultant to or have an
independent business relationship with any of Charter School of the Dunes
gervice providers or third party payers. Additionatly they may not invest in
eny payer, service provider, or supplier unless the invesiment is by mutual
fnd. ' ‘

Upon hire, and yearly thereafier, supervisors, managers and others sbove must
complete the Conflict of Interest Compliance Staterment and must immediately
noiify the Board of Directors of any changes while employed with Charter
School of the Dunes. The Conflict of Interest Cormpliance Statemment and
;otential conflict disclosures will be yeviewsd by the Board of Directors.

T,
*
A

Hazlure to-disclose potential conilicts of fnterest will result in disciplinary

sotion, up to and inchuding termination.
¥

£y personal or business activities by a supervisor, tnanager and others above
that may raise conflict of Intersst concerns st be reviewed with, and

SOTOVER in advance, by the Board of Divectors.

WX




ATTACHMENT 5




Not Applicable



ATTACHMENT 6



School Name:

Charter School of the Dunes

Current Academic Year:  2012/2013
Comparative School Analysis: Demographics
_ Comparison
Comparison School
Comparison School Westside
School | School LEAD | Marguette Leadership | Statewide
Enroliment # of Students 378 374 699 1464
Grades Served Grade Levels K-9 5-11 K-6 712
Free/Reduced Lunch % of Students 65% 66% 89% 71%
Minority % of Students 97% 100% 98% 99%
Special Education % of Students 13% 13% 12% 18%
English Language Leamer | % of Students 0% 0% 0% 0%
Titie | in current year? Yes/No Yes

NOTE: "Comparison school” is defined as schools serving a student population within f ive percentage points of the school's
"Free and Reduced Lunch" percentages in the current year.

NOTE: Comparable schools and statewide demographics should represent only those grades that are served by the school.

Comparative School Analysis: Academic Outcomes

NOTE: Applicant may add additional rows for relevant grades. Applicant may also list other state assessments that
are relevant to the student population.

2011-12 Passage rates on ISTEP+ for English/Language Arts

Comparison
Comparison School
Comparison School Westside
School | School LEAD Marquette Leadership | Statewide
Grade 3 BO[NA T6NA 85
Grade 4 79INA BO[NA 82
Grade 5 75 52 BS|NA 78
Grade 6 36 47 G5INA 78
Grade 7 77 54|NA 29.1 75
Grade 8 87 50|NA 234 73
2011-12 Passage rates on ISTEP+ for Math
Comparison
Comparison School
Comparison School Westside _
School | School LEAD | Marquette Leadership | Statewide
Grade 3 80|NA B0[NA 79
Grade 4 T9INA A0[NA 79




Grade 5 50 36 B0INA 86
Grade 6 73 16 40|NA 82
Grade 7 69 24|NA 38.7 78
Grade 8 56 27INA 141 80
2011-12 Growth Model Data for English/Language Arts
Comparison
Comparison School
Comparison School Westside
School | School LEAD | Marquette Leadership | Statewide
Grade 3 O[NA OINA
Grade 4 64.5|NA 49INA
Grade 5 63 285 44INA
Grade 6§ 51 35 46|NA
Grade 7 39 46|NA 15.5
Grade 8 55 B5iNA 215
2011-12 Growth Model Data for Math
‘ Comparison
.1 Comparison School
Comparison School Westside
Schoo! | School LEAD Marquette Leadership | Statewide
Grade 3 OINA 0|NA
Grade 4 61.5[NA 12|NA
Grade 5 48 8.5 23.5|NA
Grade 6 395 12 16|NA
Grade 7 24 13{NA 37
Grade 8 32 36(NA 125
2011-12 Passage rates on ECA in English 10
Comparison | Comparison
School New School
Comparison Tech @ Westside ,
Schoo! | School LEAD | Roosevelt l.eadership | Statewide
NA 50.9{NA 51.4 77.8
2011-12 Passaqge rates on ECA in Algebra 1
Comparison | Comparison
School New School
Comparison Tech @ Westside
School School LEAD Roosevelt Leadership | Statewide
25 17.1 67.3 144

70.2




2011-12 Graduation Rate (as defined by the IDOE)

Comparison { Comparison
School New School
Comparison Tech @ Westside
School | School LEAD Roosevelt Leadership { Statewide
Graduating Students NA NA NA 63 88.1
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Mission

The schocl's raission Is to inspire success through an
innovative curriculum, while cuttivating environmantat
stewardshin, farnlly and comrounity Involvement, and high
siendards for sitdant achievement.
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860 N. Lake Streat

Gary, 1N 46403

(21¢) 939-9690

www.csotd.org

Gradas Served . . oo i s iK-a

2008-2009 Enroi!rneni Rt 42

2007-2008 Enrollment .. ... oo v a s 437

2006-2007 Frwoltment .. .o v oo i 490
2005-2008 Enollment ..o 514

2004-20086 Erwollment . ..o ..o aaen P 447

2003-2004 Enrollment .. ... .01 .. 438

Enrollment at Capaciy. ... ... 500

Year Opened: 2003-2004
Final Year in Current Contract: 2009-2010

Ecucational Program

Charter School of the Dunes students particlpate in a
wall-rounded sdueation nurturing an appreciation for
art, history, humanity, and knowiedge while striving

1o achieve personal and acadermic excslience. Many
opportunities are extended to students beyond the basic
classroom curriculum. Charter School of the Dunes
offers Environmenital Science, humanities, and physicat
sducation clasees, along with academic acceleration
tlocks for every student in kindergarten through ¢lghth
rade. Studenis have the opportunity to participate In
speil Bowl, Math Bowl, Environmental Club, Inverdors
Fafr, 21st Century Scholars, Mational Junior Honor
Sosisty, Drug Abuse and Resistance Education (DARE),
kaskethall, volleyball, and cross countty programs.

Avoouiid Ty sepad 20008
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Charter School of the Dunes is a schoolwide Title | scﬁool, sorving studenta from Kindergartsn through sighih
grade in the Gury, Indiana area. Approximately 92.1% of the school popiiation at Charter Schoof ofthe

Dunes is black, 3.6% Is white, 3% is multl-racial, and .9% s Hispanic. Cf the 324 students,

76% recalve free

or reduced cost lunches, Eligible stizdents recelve additional ssrvices through Sponial Education and Titls |

" programming.

Academic Progress

The percentage of students passing ISTEP+ varies
across grades and content arsag at Charter Schoal of
the Dunes, with particular problems in grade three and
seven whare only 27% and 25% passed both math and
English/language arts. The highest and most consistent

Constituent Survay

Parents {n=93), staff {n1=38) and the school board {n=4)
rasponded to the survey. Seventy-nine pergent of the
staff, 66% of the parents, and 759% of the school board
rated the overall quality of education at the school as
excallant/very good. When asked o compare Charter
Gehool of the Dunes’ overall educational quality to that of
other schools, 100% of the board, 77% of the parents,

Financial Review

Financially, the school approached Ball State Univarsity
Ufifee of Charter Scokools’ expectations in the area of
Financtal Viability Resulis. it completed jts sixth year in
a financially healthy postition. The school's expenses
axeeedad revenues for the year. The school has a positive
aqully pasition with a strong balance sheet. Expanses
appeared to be appropriate. The schoaol completed the
vear with a positive cash balance. Chaer Schoal of the
Izunes is likely to raaintain strong finances in the future.
The State Board of Accounts auditors completed the
raguired audil for the two years ending June 30, 2008,
Although no material weaknasses were identifled, a
saecial audit was perdorrped duo o the jack of cash

LU gf B Dekisels

percentages are found at the fourth-grads fevel, Charter
Schoot of the Dunes didd mest AYP for the first ime.
Strong improvethent in parcent passing ISTEP+ eamead
a PL 221 rating of Academic prograss, Of studenis who
took NWEA, 36-45% met growth targets in all areas,

and 61% of the staff rated the school as much betiar/
somewhat better than its counterparis. When asked how
likaly they were {0 recomimnend, continue, ar increase
support 6 the school, 100% of the school board, from
73-77% of parants, and from 87-87% of the staff ware
fikely to do so.

handling managaement processes that ware identified in
the pravious two Slate Board of Accounts audits thal
ware not corvactad by tha school.

The school mai Bali State University Office of Chartar
Schoals' expactations in the area of financial cbligations
to Ball State University. Payments of ehligations were
made within 30 days.

Charitar School of ths B s meintained and subimitted
an acceptabia board-appinved, flve-year strategic plan
during the scheool year.

‘wosuniebility 2epori 2033-08
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Scnool Improvemeant

Tn harove stndant ISTEP,. reriarmanss, Siaiiar Yo address deficiencies that may positively Rapasy qyy
Schnei of the Nunes has faken the fllowing staus: status for 2009-2019, Charter Sohao! of the Bunag as
¢« Analyzed data to determine woaknesses in Jaken the following action: ’
eurriculum and instructional programming. ° Adopted a strict attendanca policy.
¥ Heviewed student benchmarks 1o maks Instructional ° Focused on a standards-driven assessment.
_adjustments to drive instruetion, » Implemented a writing program that includes dally
* Hirad two instructional coachas to improva the dedicated time devoted to teaching the writing
quality of instruction and Implementation of best procass.
vractices, » Ltilized Acuity diagnostic software to drive instruction
* Began aligning alt curricula to Indiana Stats and increase student achievement.
Standards using curriculym mapping software. * Purchased Study Island software to support stuclent
¢ Bcheduled 13 professional davelopment days 1o mastery af grade-level standards.
assist teachors in training for curricuium alignmen, ° Goordinated with Supplamental Educational Services
writing across the curriéalum, and classroom . to provite tutoring. ’ :

instruction and managernent.
s Monitored progress of il students.quarterly using : :
multiple performance assesaments. To improve the perceptions of their sehool in Yespoiss
to the resulis of The constituent sutvey, Charter Schoal
of the Bunes has taken the fallowing actions:

HWEA data were used 1o Improve student achievameing Hired a marketing director and focal publicity agent.

in the followiny ways: ‘ * Canducted parent celebrations to showcase student

+ Determined student academic gains, petformance,

¢ Utilized NWEA data to predict ISTEP+ success. * Sant home grads-lavel newslaiters,

s Identified students for afier-school titoring programs. ® Presented a "Black History Month” program which

¢ Used NWEA norms to set goals with stydents. caincidad with a Black Inventors Faly. '

= Initisted a school-wide incenilve encouraging ¢ Ganducted Title | math nights encouraging parent
appropriate grade level gains. interaction with students, :

* Incorporated the Descartes framework ta enhance » Participated in multiple community events.

simalt group Instruction.

* Incorporated data walls to irack the success of
students and highlight growth gaina,

* Placed students in acoeleration groups to enhance
ELA and math learning.

o

i Avcautabiity Rooot 2008.00

i
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sStudent Demographics

[
s y M .
Figure X-10 Bace/Elhniclty Perpeniages
{2e §7.1%
56|
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State of Indiana Gary Community Schacls chzmr.: School of the Dunes
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Figura X-2:  Parcentages of Students Gualifying for Free & Reduced Lunch

100 1
50 4
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Fiqurs ¥-2 Percentages of Studants in Special Educstion
Charter Schaol of the (unes 9.5% .
Eary Communizy Scheals 16.8%
Stcz of indiana 1,85
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Program Statistics

Tabla ¥-1; Attendance Hates

2008-08 100% 98.1% 96.1%
Dala Suurce: diana Department of Zducation
Tanle Y-20  Parcenlages Passing STEP+
- EPEGL}SHEL& LATH BOTh EMG L*SH & MATH

ble ¥-3:  PL221

=]
]

Parfarmance; 55.3% Imaravemeant: 16.1%

=t

znle Y-4r Adequate Yearly Pyogress

Al Students Yes fas 63 Yo3
Hack Vi : Yas Yes Yag

[ A9 . 13 frye .

FreeMleduced Yes Yes v . -
Limch s Yes

fata Smmce; indi=na Deparlment of £rueation

Tanle Y-5: MWER Percent Meeling Varget Growti: fete
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Figure Z-1:  How would you rale the averall quality of aducation?

- Board {n =
' Parent {n = 93)

Staff (n = 38)

! 0 20 a0 60 8 100
Eresant f Very Good

Figure Z-2: How Would you compare the overall quality of education to that of other schools?
Board {n=4}
Parent (n=93)

Staff (n = 38)

0 20 40 60 80 100

& Much Betrer / Somewhat Batter

sl

Fioure 7.0. oW ety are you io.. Recommand i s'"m[/{‘en’iinue at the sehoal/nerease suppoit 1o

b “T o yourschool?

Board {n=4}

Parent {n = 93}
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Fitzgerald g lsaac,.
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Certified ~ Public Accoustants

ACCOUNTANTS REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors
Charter School of the Dunes, Inc.

/e have reviewed the accompanying statement of financial position of Charter School of
the Dumes, Tae. as of June 30, 2007 and the refated statements of activities and cash flows for
the year then ended, n accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. All information
inclnded in these financial statements is the representation of the management of Charter
School of the Dunes, Inc.

A Teview consists principaily of inquiries of school personnel and analytical procedures
applied to financial data. If is substantially less in scope than an audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the objective of which
is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole.
Agcordingly, we do not express such an opinion. '

‘Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to
the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting
principles genevally accepted in the United States of America,

%ﬂjf/{d/%@ﬁ,if .é_ \

Ocichber 29, 20038

9245 Terth Meridian Styaet, Suite 302
Indiananols, [ndiana 40250

S17-844-8300  Frx 317-B48-6553

Somber of dmerican Instituts of Gertified Public Aconentants




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC,

Staternent of Financial Posiiion

Assgts_

June 30,2007

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
State and local tuition support
Grants
Other
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Property and equipment:
Leasehold improvements
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 501,840

2,533,470
62,400
24,327
15,484

3,137,521

1,192,847
578,154
(753,347)
1,017,654

. Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Current portion of long-term debi
Deferred revenue

Total current hiabilities

Long-term debt:
Notes payable
Capital lease obligation
Total liabilities

Unresincied net assets

§ 512,429
393,641
178,485

1,084,555

1,646,681

L LL649, 742

2,134,297

LA20,E78

Ses accommpenying Accountants' Review Report and notes io financial stalements.
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CHARTER SCHOQOL, OF T DUNES, INC,

Statement of Activities

: . Year Ended
Revenue, Gains and Support e JU00 30,2007
State and local tuition support | $ 3,873,908
Grant revenue : 830,368
Stdent fees . 30,741
futerest income 17,674

L AT2,691

Total revenue, gains and suppoit

Expenses

Program services:

Educational fnstruction - 1,991,203

Education support : _ : 1,134,554
Administrative _ ‘_ 1,066,810

" Total expenses , 4,192,567
Increase in net assets ' ’ 560,124
Net assets, beginning of year : 860,754
Net assets, end of year _ $ 1,420,878

See accompanying Accounizals’ Review Feport and notes to financial statements,
3




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC,

Statement of Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Change in net assets

Adjustment to reconeile change in net assets to cash flows

from operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization

Change in:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred income

Net cash provided by operating activities

Tovesting Activities

Acquisition of property and equipment
Net cash used by investing activities

Financing Activities -

Principal payments on bank loan
Principal payments on state loans
Payments under capital lease

Net cash used by financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of yeér

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for interest

RS o e o i

. Year Ended
June 30, 2007

$ 560,124

200,286

212,128
(15,484)
(134.212)

01,557

514,399

(3,382)

(3.382)

(299,636)
(95,388)
(32,116)

(427,140}

483,877

17,963

§ 501,840

Ses accolnpanying Accountanis' Review Report and notes to financial stateccents.




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC.,
Notzas; o Financial Statements

Tune 30, 2007 |

(1) Summary of Significant Accourting Policies

General

Charter School of the Dunes, Inc. (the "School") is a public benefit not-for-profit
organization incorporated under the laws of the State of Indiana. The School vperates a
public charter school established under Indiana Code 20-24-3-1 and sponsored by Ball
State University, 'The S_chool' has entered into a service agreement with Mosaica
Yducation, Inc., a for-profit organization incorporated in the State of Geotgia to provide
educational programming, managerial, legal, and financial services to the school,

Accounting Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which require
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reperted amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recopnition

Fovenues generally come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools
Act. Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the
funding received by public schools in the geographic area. Funding is received from
both state and local sources periodically during and after the school year, based on
siwollment. Revenne is recognized ratably throughout the year.

Taxes on facome

Tha School has received a determination from the U.S, Treasury Department stating that
it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a
rax-exemnpl organization, Accordingly, no. accounting for Federal and state income
taxes is required in the accompanying financial statements.

wn




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC,

Notes to Financial Staterments

(1) Summary of Significent Accounting Pelicies, Contigned

Property and Bouipent

Purchases of these assets and expenditures that raatedially increase value or extend vseful
lives are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenancs and
repairs and minor equipment purchases ate charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated usefil lives of the vespective assets using the
straight-line method, The estimated vuseful lives generally are as follows:

I easehold improvements 10 years
Furnitare and equipment 5 to 20 years

(2} Accounis Receivable

Accounts receivable for tuition support represent amounts due from the following

sOUrces:
State of Indiana $1,241,0i4
County governmental units 1,292,456
Total $2.533.470

Payments for tuition support are determined by siate law and dependent upon geographic
location of the school. The tuition is also Lndexed for poverty data of the students. The
payment schedule is determined by state law with 65% of tuition payable from the Stats .
of Indiana in the calendar year followiug the start of school and 35% of the tuition
being payable from local counties in seral-ammwal payments beginning in' the twelfth
month of the fiscal year. Upon tevocation or lermination of the charter, the payment
streams will end and any uapaid amounis will be applied to the nnpaid balancs of notes
from the Indiana Common School Fund (sesz Motz 3).




CHARTER SCHOCEL, OF THE DUNES,

INC.

Notes to Finausial Stateinanis

(1) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at Jane 30, 2007 was comprised ol:

Note payable o the Mercantile National Bank
of Indiana, at 2% above the pume rate

Notes payable to Indiana Common School
Fund, interest at 4%

Less current maturitics

The nole payable to the Tndiana Common School Fund requires somi-annual payments of
principat and interest over a period of 20 years. The note matures January 1, 2025, and
is secured by unpaid tuition support distributions (see Note 2).

The note payable to Mercantile National Bank of Indiana requires monthly principol
payments of $24,970 through December 1, 2008, plus interest at 2% above the national
prime interest rate. The note is secuted by an interest in the modular classroom leases
held by the School and guaranteed by Mosaica Education, Inc.

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ended June 30;
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
Thereafter

$ 387,688

237,869

88,051
88,051
88,051

1,144,659

$ 449454

1,584,915
2,034,369

(387,688)

$1,646,681




CHARTER SCHQOL OF THE DUNES, INC.

MNotes to Finsmeial Statsments-

{4) Leases

The School has exesuted ceartait. operating leases, The School leases its education {acility
from Gary Art Works, mc. under a subleass agreement. The sublease provides for
raonthly rent payments of $2,500 through fune 30, 2008, and is being contiried after
June 30, 2008 on a month-to-month basis. The School also leases modular classrooms
to supplement the facility. The modular classroom leases expire August 31, 2009 and
reqnire monthly rent paymouts of 516,375, Rent under these operating leases was
$239,220 for the year endad June 30, 2007.

- Future minimum obligations under non-cancellable oporating leases as of June 30, 2007
were as follows:

Year Ended June 30 ,
2008 $226,500
2009 196,500
2010 32,750

The School also leases a seonrity system wnder a capital lease agreement. At June 30,
2007 the cost and accumnlated depreciation relating to this asset were $53,222 and
$20,624, respectively.

Following is a schedule of futurs minimum. lease payments and the present value of net
minfmum lease paymenis a3 of June 30, 2007:

Year Ended June 30;
2008 $6,190
2009 3.095
Total minimum lease paymeats $9,285
Less: amount representiog miscest (271)

$9.014

o
-5




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

(5) Commitments

The School operates under a charter granied by Ball State University. As the sponsoring
organization, Ball State University exorcises cerlain oversight vesponsibilities. Under
this charter, the School has agreed to pay to Bafl State Univewsity sn annual
administrative fee equal-to 3% of state and local tuition support. The charter remains in
effect until June 30, 2010, and is renewable thereafter by mutual consent. :

The School has contracted with Mosaica Education, Inc. to provide inamagement,
administrative, and educational programming services. Under the {erms of the
agroement, the School has agreed to pay an amount equal to 12.3% ol revenues, ag
defined, for such services, This agresment expired on June 30, 2008, but tae School has
cxtended the agreement on the same terms until a new agreernent is If:’lbh Al

All School personnel are employed by Mosaica Education, fnc. under an employee
leasing agreement, Under the agreement, the School reimburses Mosaica Hducation,
Inc. for personnel costs, including life, health, disability, and retivement benefits. This
agreement remains in effect so long as the management agreement is efiective.

(6) Risks and Uncertainiics

The School provides education services to families residing in Lake and swrrounding
counties in Indiana, and is subject to the risks of economic and competitive forces at
work within this geographic area.

The majority of revenues relate o legislation enacted by the State of fndiano. Changrﬂr; n
state ot Federal legislation could significanily affect the Schood.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentralions ol credit risk
consist principally of receivables from state and local governments. A1 hune 30, 2007,
significant receivable balances were due from the State of Indiana (50%) and locsl
county governments (49%). In addition, deposits maintained at Harris Bavk grennnhy
exceed the $100,000 FDIC inswance limit.

o




CHARTER SCHOOL QF THE DUMES, INC,

Notes to Financial Statements

{7) Functionsl Exvense Reporting

The costs of providing the educational activities have been summarized on a fanctional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain expenses have been allocated
ammoag the programs and services benefited. Following is a summary of experses
comaprising each program and/or service for the year ended June 30, 2007;

Tducational Tducation Admini-

Instruction Support strative
Staff development and recruitment $ 63,676 1,726 4,153
Academin services 1,705,561 356,284 803,490
Food setvices - 157,664 -
Trausportation services - - 2,000 -
Property rental ' - 251,595 7,635
Classrcom and office supplies 221,966 - 1,839 16,118
Occupancy - 139,706 -
Depreciation - 200,286 -
Inferest - - 134,807
Other - 23,454 607

$1.991.203 1,134,554 1,066,810
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors
Charter School of the Dunes, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Chaviar Scheol of the
Dunes, Inc. as of June 30, 2009 and the related statements of activities and cash fiows for the
year then ended. These financial statements ave the 1espons1b1hty of the maﬂagement of
Charter School of the Dunes, Inc. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit, ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with suditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements ars free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes qssessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as cvalnating the
overall financial statement p1esentat10n We beheve that our audit pro*ndes a reasonable
basis for our opmlon

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above presens fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Charter School of the Dunes, Inc. as of June 30, 2009, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America. |

%&T ?.a«/;g" fffg.,;i?.f;;m,fa ned,

December 23, 2010

4745 MNorih Mevidian Steect, Suite 304
Indianapohs, kadiana 46260
311-844-8300  Tax 317-848-6534

o LT
www dtzgeradisaac net

Kember of dmarican Instirde of Cortified Public dccountonts




CHARTER SCEOOL, OF THE DUNES, INC,

Statemnent of Financial Position

Current assels:
Cash and cash equivaleats
Accounts receivable:
State and local tuition support
Crants
Prepaid expenses
Total cutrent assets

| Property and equipment:

Land

{.easehold improvements

Purnitore and equipment

Accumuiated depreciation
Property and equipment, nef

Liabilities and Net Assets -

Juoe 30,2009

S 756,209

1,337,993
19,066
16,817

2,130,085

424,566
1,192,847
636,000
(1,112,249)
1,141,164

$§ 3,271,249

Current Habilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Refundable advances
Total cwrent liabitities
Long-terrn debt

Totx! liabilities

Unt=sircied net assets

See accotnpanying notes to financial statements.

-t

$ 373,875
55,576
439,451

1,416,151

1,845,602

1,425,647

$ 3,271,249




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC.

Statement of Activities

Revenue, Gains and Support:

Fesr BEnded
June 30, 2005

State tuition sapport
Grant revenue
Student fees
Interest income
Other
Total revenue, gains and support

Expenses

Program services:
Educational instruction
Education support

Administrative

Total expenses

Increase in net assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See sccompanyiop notes to fivancial staternents.
3.

$ 2,701,535
711,401
8,856
1,165
- 2,750
3,425,707

1,904,114
529,489
979,379

3,412,982

12,725

1,412,922

§ 1,425,647




. Operating Activities

CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC,

Statement of Cash Flows

Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash flows
from operating activities:
Depreciation
: Change 1t
Accounts recelvable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Refiandable advances
Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities

Acquisition of property and equipment
Net cash used by investing activities

Financing Activities

Principal payments on bank foan

Principal payments on State of Indiana loan

Prineipal payments under capital lease
 Net cash used by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of yvear

Cash aud cash equivalents, end of year

Supplersental disclosures:
Cagh paid for interest

See accompanying notes to finencial statemernds.
e

Year Ended
Jane 30, . 2009

$

1

12,725

156,941

, 118,080

11¢

(192,412)

(15,223)

1

080,230

(411,686)

(411,686)

(

149,818)
(80,713)
(3,061)

(933,597)

434,952

321,257

756, ?{)9




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC,

Notes to Financial Statements

Tune 30, 2009

(1) Summary of Significant Acconutiog Policies

Charter School of the Dunss, Inc. (the "School"} is a public benefit not-for-profit
organization incorporated under the laws of the State of Indiana, The School operates a
public charter school established under Indiana Code 20-24-3-1 and sponsored by Bal}
State University, The School has entered into a service agreement with Mosaica
Education, Inc., a for-profit organization incorporated in the State of Delaware fo
provide educational programuning, managerial, legal, and financial services fo the
school. '

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financia! statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual
results conld differ from those estimates,

Revenue Recognition

Revenues primarity come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools
Act, Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the
fonding received by public schools in the same geographic area. Funding frorn the
State of Indiana is basad on enroilment, and is paid in equal monthly installments in
January through Decewber following the start of the school year. Revenue is
recognized in the school ysar io which the payments pertain. :

Accounits Receivable

Accoumts receivable relate primarily fo activities finded under grauts and legislation of
the State of Idiana. The School believes that U is operating in compliance with
regulaiory requirements and as such no sflowance for doubtfal accounts is deerned
necessary.




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, TNC.

Motas to Finaarial Statements

(1) Swomary of Significant Accountinig Policies, Continued

Taxes on Income

The School has received a determination from the ULS. Treasury Department stating that
it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a
tax-exempl organization. Accordingly, no accounting for federal and state income faxes
is required in the accompanying financial statements, '

Subsequent Events

The School evaluated subsequent events through December 23, 2010, the date these
financial statements were available to be issued. Matenal subsequen‘ events are
disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Property and Bquiprnent

Purchases of these assets and expenditures that materially increase value or extend useful
fives are capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenance and
repairs and minor equipment purchases ate charged to cxpense as incuired.

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the respeciive assets using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives generaily are as follows:

Leasehold improvements ... eivinn 10 years
Furnitore and equipment......ccocvvenennn. - 3 10 20 years




CHARTER SCLIOOL OF THE DUNES, INC.,

. Notes to Financial Staternonts

(2) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable for state education support as of June 30, 2009 ropresent amounts
due from the following sources:

State of Indiana:
TUHION SUPPOLE coverissceesrserersesrsensenerans $1,291,536
Special education grant.........vrmen 30,889
' 1,322,425
County governmental units......cvmeeon 15,568
LS 12T OO USU RSP $1,337,993

Tuition suppott is determined by state law and is dependent upon the geographic location
of the school. The tuition is also indexed for poverty data of the students. . The payment
schedule is likewise determined by state law with tuition payable in egqual monthly
installments in the calendar year following the start of school. As of June 30, 20009,
there were also amounts due fo the School from local governmental units under the
funding formula in effect in 2008. Upon revocation or termination of the charter, the
payment streams will cease and any unpaid amounts will be applied {o the unpaid
balance of notes from the Indiana Common School Fund (see Note 3).




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC,

Notes to Finztinial Statements

() Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at June 30, 2009 was comprised of a note payable to the Indiana Common
School Fund. The note requires semi-annval payments of principal and interest over a
period of 20 years with interest at 4% per annum. In 2009, the Indiana Common School
Fund granted a two-year moratorium on loan payments. Payments will commence
again on July 1, 2011, The note matures January 1, 2027, and is secured by unpaid
taition support distributions (see Note 2).

~ Futore maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
2010 ot irirries s vnrtvrr st spaasn s s sabs 3 -
03 S OO -
D012 oo oooreeeeeeeee s sesesessesesneseseseeas e 83,051
2013 oo ceemsirs s esserererasersess s arasreannssreans 83,051
ZOTA oot essreare s eresesnsere v erssnsrest s senas 88,051
THEIEHHET « oot ecemr i vre et s era s 1.151.998




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC.

Motes to Financial Staternents

The School has executed certain operating leases relating to its facilities and equipment.
The School leases its education facility from Gary Art Works, Inc. under a sublease
agresment, The sublease provides for monthly rent paymenis of $2,500 through June
30, 2013. The School also leases modular classrooms to supplement the facility, 'The
modular classroom lease expires August 31, 2011 and requires monthly rent payments
of $16,000. Rent expense under operating leases was $243,927 for the year ended June
30, 2009 '

Tuture minimum obligatious under non-cancellable operating leases as of June 30, 2009
were as follows: '

. Year Ended June 30 '
R 2010 e $237,222

1 T OO U 236,472
2002 e ecree et b et ek b iasserae e 76,472
2013 . et raeeteiereeranrerntraeaantan by et bt aten 43,266
{5) Refundable Advances

The School has been awarded grants from the Indiana Department of Education fo
provide educational instruction. The grants are considered to be exchange transactions.
Accordingly, tevenue is recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized as
tacurred. At June 30, 2009, the School had refundable grant advances in excess of
expenditures of $55,576:

(6) Retizerment Plan

Tetirement benefits for school employees are provided through a 401(k} plan offered by
Mosaica Bducation, Tnc, Under the plan, the School maiches 25% of any employee
contributions up to a maximum of 4% of the employec’s gross salary. Employees vest
in the company match over a period of five years. Substantially all employess are
eligible to participate. Retiveraent plan expense was $3,618 for the year ended June 30,
2009, -




CHARTER SCHOOQL OF THE DUNES, INC,

MNotes to Financial Statements

{7} Cotnmiiments

The School operates under a charter pranted by Ball State University, As the SpOnsoring
organization, Ball State University exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Under
this charter, the School has agreed to pay to Ball State University an annual
administrative fee equal to 3% of state tuition support. The charter remains in effect
until June 30, 2010, and is yenewsble thereafter by mutual consent, Payments under
this agreement for the year ended June 30, 2009 were $76,144,

The School contracted with Mosaica Education, Inc. to provide mapagement,
administrative, and ecducational programming services. Under the terms of the
agreement, the School agreed to pay an amount equal to 12.5% of revenues, as defined,
for such services. This agreement expired on June 30, 2008, bui the School continued
to operate under the agreement on the same terms during the year ended June 30, 2009,
Payments under this agreement for the yvear ended June 30, 2009 were $323,686.

All School personnel were employed by Mosaica Eduocation, Inc. vader en emplovyee
leasing agreement. Under the agreement, the School reimbursed Mosaica Education,
Inc. for persannel costs, including life, health, disability, and retirement benefits. This
agreement remained in effect so long as the management agreement was in effect,

Subsequent to June 30, 2009, the Scheol confracted with American Quality Schools, a
for-profit organization incorporated in the State of Hllinois, to provide manapgement,
adminisitative and educational programming services, Under the terms of the
agreement, the School has agreed to pay an amount equal to 7% of revenues, as defined,
for such services, The contract was effective in August 2009 and cxpires Aogust 1,
2012,

In 2009, the School purchased iand with the intent to construct a new education facility.

Management has continued to pursue this plan and obtain financing, but no
commitments are in place as of Decosmber 23, 2010.

.10~




- CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC.

Motes to Finsncial Statements-

{ 8) Risks and Uncerlainties

The School provides education services to families residing in Lake and surrovading
counties in Indiana, and is subject to the risks of economic snd competitive forces at
work within this gecpraphic area.

The majority of revenues relate to legislation enacted by the State of Indiana and prants
awarded under federal programs. Changes in state or federal legislation could
significantly affect the School,

Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit wisk
consist principally of receivables from the State of Indiana. At June 30, 2009,
substantially all receivable balances were due from the State of Indiana, In addition,
deposits maintained at Harrls Bank normally exceed the FDIC insurance Hmit,

{9) Funciional Expense Reporting

The costs of providing educational services have been summarized on a fonctional basis
in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain expenses have been allocated among
the programs and services benefited. Following is a summary of expenses comprising
each program and service for the year ended June 30, 2009:

Educational Education Admini-
Instruction Suppoit strative,
Staff development
and FECTMLIEIIE ovesivirrs et ecerens $ 93,863 1,092 0,233
Academic SETVICES .. v e reness 1,354,572 232,073 754,473
Food 8erviCes i i - 107,759 -
Transporiation SeIvices....cviiricinnnes 62 8,090 -
Property rental ..o s 228,100 ) - 15,827
Classroom and
office supplies. .o 99,011 21,709 19,404
OCCUPADCY wnecrvirccesiomnivinae e enene i 44 999 S118.223 -
Depreciafion .o ceses s 77,028 34,853 45,057
I0ESEEL oo e e - - 74,851
CHRET et 6,479 5,090 63,434

51,004,114 529.489 979,379
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CNOWLING

INDUSTRY ESTABLISHED | FOCUSED ON QUALETY

IMNDEPENGENT ATDITGRE REPOKT

To the Board of Directors
Charter School of the Dunes

We have audited the accompanying siatements of financial position of Charter School of
the Dunes (the “School”) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of
activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial
statemnents are the responsibility of the School’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial stateinents based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accerdance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial staiements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles uscd and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statemrent presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinicn.

In our opinion, the financial statemenis referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Crarter School of the Dunes as of June 30, 2011 and
2010, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. ' ’

(owmes, Wmﬁ’my St sanceisies, . {7,
Comer, Nowling And Agsociates, P.C.
March 26, 2011

1
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CHARTUR SCHDOL OF K DUNKES
STATEWENTS OF BINAMCIAL POSITECH
JUNE 30, 2041 AWD 2010

2011 2010

AIBETS o
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,126,773 $ 518,648
Accounts receivable:
State and local twition support 1,466,312 1,270,202
Grants _ 196,125 185,060
Prepaid expenses L1 28,705
Total current asscfs 2,827,030 2,402,615
PROPERTV AND EQUIPMENT:
Land 424,566 4724 566
Leasehold improvements : 1,293,372 1,192,847
Furniture and equipment 697,233 650,481
Accumulated depreciation : (1,421,247 (1,264,789)
Total property and equipment , . 993,924 1,003,105
Total assets $ 3820954 & 3,405,720
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3 404,193 b 356,729
Refundable advances 4,022 152,253
Total current liabilities 408,215 _ 438,982
LONG-TERM DERT : 4,812,131 LSCL0%6
Total Habitities 2220346 1,950,008
TMRESTRICTED MET ASSETS 1,600,608 o lasTa
Total liabilities and tnrestricted net assels 5 3,820,954 § 3,403,720

See accowmpanying notes to financial statements.

y

pA




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNK 39, 2011 AMD 283D

2011 2010
FEVENUE AND 8UPPORT ,
State tuition support . $ 2,782,420 $ 2,346,035
Grant revenue - 1,106,293 - - 1,334,515
Student fees : 17,052 21,879
Interest income 6,517 1,346
Ofther _ . 31934 24,347
Total revenue and support 3944215 3,728,122
HRPENSES .
Program services - 2,917,527 2,886,458
Management and gencial 841,792 823,422
Total expenses 3759319 3,709,880
NET INCREASE IN NET ASSETS ' 184,897 18,242
MET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR | o 1,415,712 1,425,646
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT ‘ - (28,176)
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 3 1,600,608 $ 1,415,712

See accorgpanying notes to financial statements,
5 ‘




CHARTRER SCHOOL OF THE DUNLS

STATENMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPEMTES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNK 30, 2011

Program Management

gupport & General

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and benefits

§ 2085496 5 239,118

$ 2,325,614

Teaching supplies and equirnent o« -173,351 - 173,551
Academic services ) 108,071 - 109,071
Staff development 27,406 - 27,400
Occupaney 209,022 146,364 355,386
Food service 140,132 - 140,132
Schoot Administration 62,327 409,372 471,699
Depreciation 109,521 46,938 156,458

Total expenses reported

- by function

$ 2917527 $ 841,792

Ses accompanyng aotes 1o financial statzivents.
4




[

CHARTE]
STATEMENT OF B

SCHOOL OF THE DUNES
NCTIONAL BEXPENSLES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2010

Program Management
support & Geperal Total -
OPERATEIG EXPINSTS: S
Salaries and benefits § 1,928,107 5 217,943 $ 2,146,050
Teaching supplies and equiment 163,771 - 163,771
Academic services 118,071 - 118,071
Staff development 80,533 .- 80,533
Qccupancy 727,392 169,819 397,211
Food service 142,387 - 142 387
School Administration 119,420 389,898 506,318
Depreciation - 106,778 45,762 152,540
Total expenses reported
by function $ 2886458 & 823,422 $ 3,709,880

Ses accompanying noies to financizl statemants.

b




CRARTER SCHROOL, OF 60 DUNES

STATEMELEYS OF CASE FLOWS

WOR THT YEARS BNDED YURNE 30, 2011 AMD 2010

Sas ancompanying roiss to finaccial stateracnts.

6

011 2010
CASHTFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIUS:
Change in net assets $ 184,397 3 18,242
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) ta viet assets to '
net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 156,458 152,540
Increase {decrease) in cash from changes in:
Accounts receivable (207,175) (98,205
Prepaid expenses (3,114 {11,888}
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 47,464 (17,146)
Refundable advances (128,231) 76,677
Net cash provided by operating activitics 44,209 120,221
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and eqmpment (147,278) (14,431
Net cash used in investing activities {147,278) (14,431)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in accrued interest, long-term 59,250 56,699
Proceeds from State of Indiana Loan 251,854 o
Net cash provided by financing activities 314,104 55,699
NET INCREASE IN CASH 208,124 162,439
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 018,648 156,209
CASH, END OF YEAR __§__ll?:§j_7i H$;$ 918, 6 41,_,
Supplemental disclosure: )
Cash paid in interest S $ 4,843




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THY DUNES, (MNC,
POTES TD FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 36, 2011 AND 20619

HOTY 1 - SUMMARY OF BIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLACIES

NATUEE OF OPERATIONS

Charter ~School of the Dunes, Inc. (the "School) is a public benefit not-for-profit
organization incotporated nnder the laws of the State of Fidiana. - The School operates a
public charter school established under Indiana Code 20-24-3-1 and sponsored by Ball State
University. The Schoot has entered into a service agreement with American Quality Schools,
Inc., a for—ploﬁt organization, to provide educational programmmg, managerial, legal, and
financial services fo the school, _

BASTS OF ACCOUNTING |

The financial statements of Charter School of the Dunes have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting, and arcordingly, reflect all significant receivables, paya’oles and other
liabilifies.

TAX STATUS

The School has received a determination letter from the U.S. Treasury Department stating
that it qualifies under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code as a
tax-exempt organization, Accordingly, no accounting for federal and state income taxes is
required in the accompanying finaricial statements,

The Organization recognizes a tax benefit only if it is more likely than not the tax position
would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to oceur.
The amount recogaized will be the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions nof meeting the more-likely-than-
not test, no tax benefit will be recorded, :

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Revenues primarily come from resources provided under the Indiana Charter Schools Act.
Under the Act, the School receives an amount per student in relation to the funding received
by public schools in the same geographic ares, Funding from the State of Indiana is based on
enrollment, and s paid in equal monthly installments in Jamuary through Decomber
following the start of the school year, Revenue is recognized in the school year to which the
payments pertain,

ACCOUNTS BECEIVASLE

Accounts recelvable relate orimarily to activities fundsd under grants and legislation of the
State of Indiana. The Scheol belisves that it is operating in compliance with regulatory
requirernents and as such no atlowancs for doubtful accounts is deemed necessaty,




LHARTE { SCHNCGE OF TR HUDNES, INC,
MOTES TO FUIANCIAL STATENEN TS
JT}‘T:L 35, 2011 ADD 2010

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNITICANT ACCOUNTING FGL {CIES (covtinned)

COMTRIBUTIONS

All contributions are considered to be avaﬁabie for untestdcted wse unless specifically
restricted by the donor, Amounts received that are designated for future pariods or testricted
by the donor for specific pwposes are reported as temporarily resteicted or permanently
restricted support that increases those net asset classes. When a temporary restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assefs are reclassifted (6 uncestricted, net assets and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from vestrictions. If a restriction
is fulfilled in the same time period in which the contribution is received, {, the Organization
repotts the suppoit as unrestricted,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMIENT

Purchases of assets and expenditures that materially increase value or extend useful lives are
capitalized and are included in the accounts at cost. Routine maintenance and repairs and
minor equipment purchases are charged to expense as incurred. |

Depreciation is provided over the estimated nseful lives of the ‘IﬁSpﬁCﬁVB assets using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives generally are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 10 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 20 years

Depreciation expense for the vears ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was $156,458 and $152,540
respeclively.

USE OF ESTIMATES :

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect cerfain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual resubis could differ
from those estimates.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: wnrestricled net assets, tempocarily
restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. A desoription of the wwestriciad,
temporarily and permanently restricted net asset classes follows:

Unrestricted net assets represent the portion of net assets of the Organization that is
neither permavently vestricted nor temporacily restricted by donor-irapossd
stipalations.  Unresiricted net assets include expendable funds available for the
support of the Organization. |

=]




CHARTER SCHOOL, OF THRE D U MIES, XD,
NOTES TO TRIANCIATL STAT LIW’*‘N’TS
JUNE 30, 2011 APMD 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES (vontloied)
FIIANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATICN (poutinued)

Temporarily vestricted net assets represent contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by the Organdzation is laifed by donor-imposed stipulations that either
expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the
Organization pursuant to those stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets also include, pursnant to Indiana law, cumulative
appreciation and reinvested gains on pennanently 1estncted net assets, which has not
been appropriated by the Board of Directors.

Permanently restricted net assets represent contributions and other inflows of assets
whose use by Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that neither
expire by passage of time nor can be fulfilicd or otherwise removed by actions of the
Organization.

The Organization did not have any temporarily restricted or pennancnﬂy restricted net assets
as of June 30, 2011 and 2010.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to June 30, 2011, the School entered info agreements fo construct a new school
building, The building will be financed through various bonds and tax eredits. Closing on
these loans took place in December 2011, Seenote 9.

The School evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2012, the date these financial
staternents were avatlable to be issued.

PO 9 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Agoonnts receivable for state education support represent amounts due from the following
soTTCEs: '

As of June 3C,: 2011 2010

State of Inddana;

"Tuition support $ 1,391,325 % 1,198,213

Special eduestion grant - 48,943 35,153

NSLP Progtee 26,275 36,836
& 1270202

Toial o8 1466.543

LUn]




CHARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
JUME 30, 2011 AND 2018

NOTE 2 - ACTOUNTS RECEIVABLE (contnucd)

Tuition support is determined by state law and is dependent upon the geographic location of
the school. The tuition is also indexed for poverty data of the students, The payment
schedule is likewise determined by state law with tuition payable in equal monthly
installments in the calendar year following the start of school. As of June 30, 2011 and 2010,
there were also amounts due to the School from local governmental unils wnder the funding
formula in effect for 2010 and 2009. Upon revocation or termination of the charter, the
payment streams will cease and any unpaid amounts will be applied to the unpaid balance of
notes from the Indiana Common School Fund {see Mote 3), and then to other entities that had
distributed funds to the school.

NOTE 3 - LONG-TERM DERT
Long-term debt consisted of two notes payable to the {ndiana Common School Fund and

related accrued interest.

[.ong-term debt consists of the following as of June 30,;

2011 2010

Note payable — 4% payable in semi-annual payments of
principal and interest, The note matures on January 1,
2027 and is secured by unpaid tuition support '
distributions (sce note 2). $ 1,416,151 § 1,416,151
Note payable — 4% payable in semi-annual payments of
principal and interest. The note matures on January 1,
2032 and is secured by unpaid tuition support
distributions (see note 2), 251,854 -
Long-term debt before accrmed interest _ 1,668,005 1,416,151
Accrued interest due July 1, 2013 144,126 84,875

Toial long-term debt S 1.812.131 § 1.501.020

18




CEARTER BCHOOL OF THR DUNES, TNC,
FOTES TO TINANCIAL STATIMENTS
JUNE 30, 2041 AND 2010

MNOTH 5 - LONG-TERM DERT (centinusd)
I 2009, the Indiana Commor School Fund granied a two -yeat moratotivm oo loan

payments, The moratorium was subsequently extended another 2 years. Payments are to
resume on July 1, 2013. :

Year ended June 30;
2012 % Con
2013 -
2014 100,644
2015 100,644
2016 100,644
Thereafter 1,366,073

3 1,668,005

NOTE 4 - LEASES

The School has executed certain aperating leases relating to its facilities and equipment. The

. School leases its education facility from Gary Art Works, Inc. under a sublease agreement,

The sublease provides for monthly rent payments of $2,500 through June 30, 2013. The
School also leases modular classrooms to supplement the facility. The modular classroom
lease expires August 31, 2011 and requires monthly rent payments of $16,000. Rent expense
under operating leases for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were $236,593 and
$237,826 respectively.

Future minimum obligations unde1 non-cancellable operating 1eases as of June 30, 2011 were
as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2012 $ 236472
2013 76,472
2014 43,266

MOTE 5 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK AND MAJOR SOURCES OF
RO ENUE

The School provides education serviess to families residing tn Lake and surrounding counties
in Indiana, and is subjost to the risks of ecenomic sud competitive forces at work within this
goographic area, '




CHARTER SCHOOL OQF THE DUNES, 1M,
IHOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNK 30, 2011 AND 2010

VIOTE 5 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK AMD MAJOR SCURCES OF
REVENUL {coatinuesd

The majority of revenues relsts to legisiation cnacted by the State of Indiana and prants
awarded under federal prograrns. Changes in state or federal legislation could significantly
affect the School,

The School maintains cash balances at financial institutions insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. As of June 30, 2010 and 2011 the tfotal
uninsured balances in the accounts were $814,440 and $537,116 respectively. '

NOTE 6 - LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Long-tived assets held and used by the Organization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circurnstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable,

NOTE 7 - REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

The School has been awarded grants from the Indiana Department of Education to provide
educational instruction. The pranis are considered to be exchange transactions, Accordingly,
revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recogmzed as incurred. At June 30,
2011 and 2010, the Schoo! had refundable grant advances in excess of expenditures of
$4,022 and $132,253 respectively.

NOTE 8 — RETIREMEMNT FLad

Prior to September, 2009, retivernert benefits for school employees were provided through a
401(k) plan offered by Mosaica Education, Inc. Under the plan, that School matched 25% of
any employee contributions wp o a maximum of 4% of the employee's gross salary.
Employees vest in the compaity match over a period of five years. Substantiaily all
employees are eligible to participate. The Plan incurred no retivement plan expense through
September 30, 2009. Subsequent to August 2009, all eligible school employees may
participate in a 403(b) plan oflered by American Quality Schools, Ine. Under the 403(b)
plan, the employees may coalribute wp to 100% of their salary provided they ate over 18
vears of age and have at lsast 20 days of employment. Neither the School nor American
Quality Schools makes any coateivigtions to the 403(b) pian. Afier December 31, 2010, all
noncertified School employees are eligible to participate in the Indiana Public Broployas
Retirement (PERF) plan and ail cariified ernployees are eligible to pa’tmpaie in the Tsacher’
Retirement Fund (TRI) plan.
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CHARTER SCEOOL OF TEE DUNES, INC.,
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FUDLE 36, 2011 AND 2010

NOTE 8- RETIREMENT PLAN (contioned)

PUBLIC EMPLOYELS RETIREMENT FUND. The Indiava Public Bmployees'
Retirement Pund (PERY) is a defined benefit pension plan. PERFE is an agent multiple-
employer public ermployee retirement system which provides retirement benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. All full-time employees are eligible to participaie in this defined
benefit plan. State statutes (IC 5-10.2 and 5-10.3) govem, through the Indiana Public
Retirement System (INPRS) Board, most requirements of the system, and give.the School
Corporation authority to contribute to the plan. The PERF retirement benefit consists of the
pensionprovided by employer contributions plus an annuity provided by the member's
annuity savings account. The annuity savings account consists of members' coatributions, set
by state statute at 3 percent of compensatlon plus the interest credited to the member's
account. The employer may elect to make the contributions on behalf of the meriber.

INPRS administers the plan and issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and tequired supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for
its participants. That report may be obtained by contacting:

Indiana Public Retirerent System
1 North Capital Street, Suite 601

‘Tndianapolis, IN 46204

Phone (388) 526-1687

The contribution requirements of the plan members for PERF arc established by the Board of
Trustees of INPRS. Total contributions to the plan for 2011 and 2010 were 330,700 and $0
respectively. ‘

TEACHERS’ RETIREMENT FUND. The Indiana Teachers' Retirement Fuad (TRT) is a
defined benefit pension plan, TRY is a cost-sharing multiple-employer putlic employee
retirement system, which provides retirement benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. All
employees engaged in teaching or in the supervision of teaching in the public schools of the
State of Indiana are eligible to participate in TRF. State statute (IC 5-10.2) govesns, thvough
the Indiana Public Retirement System (INPRS) Board, most requirements of the system, and
gives the School Corporation authority to contribute to the plan. The TR retivement beneit
consists of the pension provided by employer coniributions plus an annuity providsd by the
member's annuity savings account. The annuity savings accoumt consists of members'
contributions, set by state statule at 3 percent of compensation, plus the interast credited to
the member's acconnt. The School Corporation may elect to make the coniributions on behail
of the member,




CHARTER SCHOOL OF TdE DUNES, IM{C,
NGTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUME 39, 2811 ATD 2810

NOTHE 8- RUWTIREMVIENT PLAN (continued)

INPRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements snd
requited supplementary inforunation for the TRF plan as a whole and for its
Participants. That report may be obtained by contacting:

Indiana Public Retirement System
1 North Capital Street, Suite 001
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Phone (388) 286-3544

The School Corporation contributes the employer's share to TRF for certified employees
employed under a federally funded program and all the certified employees hired after July 1,
1995, The School Corporation currently receives partial funding, through the school funding
formula, from the State of Indiana for this confribution. The employer’s share of
contributions for certified personnel who are fiot employed under a federally funded program
and were hired before July 1, 1995, is considered to be an obligation of, and is paid by, the
State of Indiena. Total contributions to the plan for 2011 and 2010 were $65,594 and $0
respectively.

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS

The School operates under a charter pranted by Ball State University. As the sponsoring
organization, Ball State University exercises certain oversight responsibilities. Under this
charter, the School has agreed to pay to Ball State University an annual administrative fee
equal to 3% of state tuition support. The charter remains in effect until June 30, 2014, and is
renewable thereafler by mutual consent. Payments under this agreement for the years ended .
June 30, 2611 and 2010 were $30,947 and $72,020 respectively.

During ihe yesr ended June 30, 2010, the School contracted with American Quality Schools,
Inc., a for-proft organization mcorporated in the State of Illinois, to provide management,
administrative and educational programming services. Under the terms of the agrecment, the
School has agrend to pay an amount equal to 6% of revenues, as defined in the contract,
through June 30, 2010 and 7% through the remainder of the contract, for such services. The
contract was effective in August 2009 and expires Angust 1, 2012,

All School personnel are employed by American Quality Schools, Inc, Under the agreement,
the School reimburses Amsiican Quality Schools, Inc. for personne! costs, including life,
health, disability, and retivernent benefits, This ageeement remains in effect so long ag the
management agresnent is in effect. '

The School entered fnio confracts for the financing and construction ol a new building,
Construction is estirnated to begin ia June 2017 with an estimnated completion date of July
2013 with an estimated cost of the project is twelve million dollars and i3 expected to be
financed, in pari, through Quality School Consiruction bonds and New Market Tax Credits.

14




CEARTER SCHOOL OF THE DUNES, IMC,
NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATENEENTS
JUNKE 30, 2011 AND 2010

FOTE 10 - PRIOR ERI00 ADJUSTMANT

in 2009 the Indiana Common School Fund grauvted s two year moratorium on loan payments
and subsequently extended that period two additional years. Payments on Indiana Common
School Loans are scheduled to resume on July 1, 2013, Whils payments on these loans were
deferred, interest. on the loans continued to accrue at the loan raie.  The School did not
recognize interest expense incurred on the loan during the first half of the moratorivm period.
As of June 30, 2009, unpaid interest on the Indiana Common Schoo! Loan was $28,176.
This amount has been treated as a prior period adjustment. The 2010 financial statements
have been restated to reflect additional accrued integest of $56,699,

15
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5:58 PM Charter School of the Dunes
Profit & L.oss

02119113
Accrual Basis

Income |
1610 - ftorest on lnvestments

1611 - School Lunch Program

1814 « After School Programs

1741 - Student and Adult Fees

1742 - Other Fees

1920 - Conltributions and Donations
1994 - Overpayments/Reimbursements
1999 - Othor |
3111 - Basic Grant

31561 - School Lunch

3221 « Fulil Day Kindergarten Grant
4223 - Public Law 101-476 {DEA

4291 » Sohool Lunch Reimbursemant
4292 - School Breakfast Reimbursement
4297 « Schoo! Snack Reimbursement
4514 - Titla |

4680 - American Regovery Reinvest Act
4581 + Education Job

4990 - Title ll Funds

5200 - Transfer From Another Fund

Total income

Expense

60100.910 Transfer To Fund

11060 - Full Day Kindergarten
11850.110 Gerlified Salaries
11050.212 Soctal Security Cert
14050.216 TRF
14060221 Group Life Ins
11050.222 Greup Health Ins
11050.223 Group Accident ins
11050.611 Operational Supplies

Totai 11060 - Full Day Kindergarten

11100 - Elementary
11100.110 Certified Salarles
14100.120 Non-Cert Salaries
11100.130 Temparary Satarios
11100.211 So¢ Sec Non-Cert
11400.212 Soctal Security Cert
11160.214 PERF
11100.216 TRF
11100.221 Group Life Ins

Januvary 2013

Jan 13 Jui™2-Jan 13
8272 414.73
117.00 1,516.65
0.00 -3,862.00
0.00 1,723.95
138.00 5,335.50
360.00 1,793.30
4,848,66 207,504.81
602,38 243,334.36
303,810.41 1,982,012.17
.00 1,420.61
0.00 122,400.00
0.00 -9,288.93
17,875.30 80,535.76
2,700.97 16,103,686
1,327.80 3,800.84
42,745 .55 427,322.78
0.00 83,050.14
0.00 0.00
0.00 48,022.00
400,000.00 2,903,435.05
774,648.78 6,099,597.49
400,000.00 2,905,435.05
7,222.20 56,343.76
532,34 4,205.40
541 67 4,265.47
6.50 46,14
668.97 3,943.91
46.85 327.65
0.00 1,866.25
8,908.53 70,998.88
67,508.71 475,804.68
32,457.10 213,773.56
7,281.68 42,571.77
2,736.85 17.579.41
3,218.41 34,180.74
2,070.21 12,190.91
4,319.40 37,740.11
36.00 176,64
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5:58 PM
02/19/13

Charter School of the Dunes

Acoruai Basis

$1100.222 Group Health Ins
41400.223 Group Accident Ins
11100.230 Unemployment Ins
11100.341 Instruction Services
14100.810 Field Trip transport
11100.61% Elementary Supplies
11100.615 Uniforms

11100.850 Periadicals

Total 11100 « Elementary

41200 - Middle/Junior High School

Totat 11209 - MiddloAunior High School

11260.110 Certified Salaries
11260.120 Non-Cert Salaries
11260.241 Soc¢ Sec Non-Cert
11200.212 Sccial Sscurity Cort
11200.214 PERF

11200.216 TRF

11200.221 Group Life Ins
11200.222 Group Health Ins
11200.223 Group Accldant Ins
11200.311 Instruction Services
11200.811 Operational Supplies

12610 - Learning Disability

12610.110 Gertified Salaries
12610,420 Non-Cert Salaries
12610.130 Temporary Salaties
12610.211 Soc Sec Non-Gert
12810,212 Social Security Cert
12610.214 PERF

12640.216 TRF

12616.221 Group Life [he
12610.222 Group Heaith ins
12610.223 Group Accldent ins
12640.641 Supplies

Total 12810 » Learning Disability

16200 » Preventive Remediation

16200.341 Instruction Services

Total 16200 - Preventive Remediation

21340 - Nurse Services

21340.120 Non-Gert Salaries

Profit & L.oss

January 2013

Jan 13 Jul 12 - Jan 13
9,910.38 71,106,141
842,67 4,041.53
6,127.78 11,005.97
1,186.76 2,007.25
1,045,00 £,225.00
0.00 24,851.68
0.00 5,698.49
0,00 623.72
138,840.03 959,676.92
13,882.20 94,912.46
0.00 3,020.84
0.00 239.06
1,017.77 7,028.42
0.00 210.94
470.37 3,804.37
18,70 70.33
1,422.07 £,861.32
119.56 488.26
0.00 513.00

0.00 3,216.71
16,630.67 120,265.70
13,767.60 96,029.69
8,939.30 69,396.48
00.00 3,700.00
690.55 5,205.37
1.030.13 7,185.09
737.49 4,785.86
1,032.57 7.159.74
2141 106,23
1,385.14 10,270.41
240.56 941.12
0.00 1,149.45
28,701.93 204,746.98
15,000.00 33,977.29
15,000.00 33,977.28
3,937.60 28,184.94
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5:56 PM
0211913 Charter School of the Dunes

Accrual Basis Profit & Loss
January 2013

Jan 13 Jul M2 - Jan 13

21340.211 Soc Sec Non-Cert 289.98 2,002.45
21340.214 PERF 324,85 1.873.21
21340.221 Group Life Ins 3.50 2473
21340.222 Group Heaith ns 306.46 2,136.52
21340.223 Group Accident Ins 26.83 186.41
21340.611 Operational Supplies .00 361.72
Total 21340 - Nurse Serviges 4,888.02 34,968.98

21420 : Psychologlical Testing .
21420.319 Professionat Services 2,800.00 8,825.00

Total 21420 - Paychotogical Testing 2,860.00 8,826.00

21520 * Speech Pathology Services
21520.319 Professional Services 1,040.00 6,744.00

Total 21620 - Speech Pathology Services 1,040.00 §,744.00

21620 - Occupational Therapy Services
21620.319 Professional Sarvices 505.94 1,339.08

Total 21620 - Occupational Therapy Sarvices 505.94 1,333.06

21990 Other Student Services

21950.110 Gertified Salaries 3,935.60 28,873.64
21896.212 Social Sacurity Gert 297.04 _ 2,179.65
21990.216 TRF 29517 2,164.59
21980.221 Group Life Ins 4.50 3150
21980.222 Group Health Ins 44,99 317.67
21990.223 Group Accident ins 2663 178.41
Total 21990 Other Student Services 4,602,93 33,546,386

22120 « Instruction & Currictilum Dev

22120.319 Gther ProfiTech Sarv 6.00 .00
22120.580 Travel 0.00 0.00
Totaf 22120 - Instruction & Curriculum Dev 0.00 0.00

22130 - instructional Staff Tralning

22430.580 Travel 170.89 8,382.71
22130.641 Operational Supplies 0.60 501.97
22130.748 Prof Development 4,448.00 18,597.00
Total 22130 - Instructional $taff Training 461898 ‘ 27,431 68

22360 - Network Support

22360.319 Other ProfiTech Sery 108780 6,635.08
22360.611 Supplies 0.00 83,07
22360.744 Connectivity 0.00 59.97
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5:58 PN
0211913

Accruat Basls

Total 22360 - Notwork Support

23150 - Legal Services

23160.319 Other ProfiTech Serv

Total 23150 - Legal Services

23219 - Office of the Superintendent

Total 23210 « Office of the Superintendent

23210.110 Cerlified Salaries
23210.212 Social Secwrity Cert
23240.216 TRF

23240.221 Group Life Ins
23210.222 Group Hoalth ins
23210.223 Group Accident Ins
23210.319 Other ProffTech Serv
23240.580 Travel

23220 - Community Relations

23220.540 Advertising
23220.611 Operational Supplies

Totaf 23220 - Community Relations

24100 - Office of the Principat

24100.110 Certified Salaries
74100.120 Non-Cert Salaries
24100.211 Soc Sec Non-Cert
24100,212 Social Security Cert
24100.214 PERF

24100.216 TRF

24100.221 Group Life Ins
24100.222 Group Health Ins
24100,223 Group Accldent Ins
24100.319 Other ProffTech Serv
24100.531 Telephone
24100.532 Postage

24100.580 Travel

24100611 Operational Supplies
24160.810 Dues & Fees

Total 24160 - Office of the Princlpal

25150 + Payroll Services

25150.316 Data Processing Serv

Total 25150 - Payroll Services

Charter School of the Dunes
Profit & Loss
January 2013

Jan13  Jul'i2 - Jan 13
1,067.80 6,793.02
0.00 7,655.00
0.00 -7,855.00
8,645.00 £4,603.33
B45.68 4,886.04
0.00 648,38
7.0 53.66
306.46 2,134,42
30.75 276.25
19,961.06 140,984.32
£.00 18.00
20,607.45 213,606.39
8.00 714.00
450,00 1,305.18
450,00 2,019.18
4,046.60 3577024
11,017.80 80,807.02
822 57 6,113.02
378.42 2,756,18
908.97 5684.50
371.00 2,701 44
9.40 62.37
349.68 2,910.89
89.27 524,89
0.00 2,012.50
-1,797.44 1,904.92
570,10 2,926.17
0.00 53.680
1,335.78 17,673.55
85.00 10,432.00
19,087.15 172.439.99
243.43 255398
243.43 2553.98
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5:58 PM Charter School of the Dunes
02/19/13

Ascrual Basis Profit & Loss
January 2013

Jan13 Jul2-Jan 13

26160 - Financlai Accounting
25460.3198 Other ProffTech Sery 8,087.00 £0,835.00

Total 25160 ¥ Financial Accounting 6,087.00 50,836.00

25191 - Refund of Revenue
25191.876 Refunds 53.95 159,906.88

Total 25191 - Refund of Revenue 53.95 © 159,906.89

25195 - Bank Service Charges
26196.871 Bank Service Charges 0.00 124,706,685
Total 25185 - Bank Service Charges 0.00 124,706.65

25720 - Recruitment and Placement
25720.318 Other ProffTech Serv 39.45 1,454.90
Total 26720 - Recruitment and Placement 30.45 1,454.90

26200 - Maintenance of Building

26200.120 Non-Cert Salaries 10,560.92 79,404.07
26200.211 Soc Security Non-Cert 793.04 6,605.91
26200.214 PERF 732,72 4,808.17
26200.221 Group Life ins 33.00 34387
26200.222 Group Health ins 774.83 . 5,106.2¢
26200.223 Group Accident Ins 85.87 542.31
26200.319 Other ProfiTech Setv 301.50 5,673.47
26209.411 Water & Sewage 386.56 §,469.56
26200.412 Refuse Removal 500,26 3,514.73
26200.420 Cleaning Services 0.06 29.69
26200.430 Repairs & Min¢ Serv oge 4,898.18
26200.811 Operational Supplies 2,060.48 14,551,568
26200.622 Gas Utilities 773.18 1,870.93
Total 26206 - Maintenance of Building 17,001.34 132,420.07

26300 + Maintenance of Grounds
26300.319 Other ProfiTech Serv 376.00 376.00
Total 26300 - Maintenance of Grounds 376.00 376.00

26600 - Security Services

26600.120 Non-Cert Salaries 3,383.20 21 i41i8.15
28800.211 Soc Sec Non-Cert 24791 1.611.24
28806.214 PERF 96.24 575.35
28600.221 Group Life Insurance 9.40 49.30
26600.222 Group Health Ins 1,085.73 802,75

26600.223 Group Aceldent Ins 53.43 101.65
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5:68 PM
02/19/13
Accrual Basis

Charter School of the Dunes
Profit & Loss

26800.533 Monitoring Services
Total 28600 - Security Services

26700 - Insurance
26708.520 insurance
Total 267480 - Insurance

27700 - Contracted Transporiation Serv
27700.510 Student Transp Serv

Total 27706 - Contracted Transportation Sery

31200 - Food Prep & Dispensing
31200120 Non-Cert Salaries
31200.211 Soc Sec Non-Cert
31260.214 PERF
31260.221 Group Lifo Ins
31200,222 Group Health Ins
31260.223 Group Accident ins
34260611 Operational Supplies

Total 31200 - Food Prep & Dispensing

31400 - Food Purchases
31400.614 Food Purchases

Total 31400 - Food Purchases

31900 + Other Food Service
31900.614 Food Purchases

Total 31900 - Other Food Service

33990 - Parent Involvement
33890,611 Operational Supplies
Total 33990 - Parent nvolvement

33990 . - Athletics
33990.319 Athletic Coach Stipen
33990.811 Operating Supplies
33990.8560 Unfforms

Total 33990 . - Athletics

338989, - Extra-Curricular Expenses
33080611 ECA Supplies

Total 33990, « Extra-Curricular Expenses

45600 - Rent of Buiilding & Baquipment

January 2013

Jan 13  JulM2-Jan 13
7100 197.00
4,947.91 24,725.34
0.00 15,678.89
0.00 15,678.69
12,150.00 71,3856.00
12,150.00 71,285.00
5,606.93 36,074.07
431.26 2,754.79
420.00 2,316.70
1.80 11.84
21.37 150.43
10.57 73.99
0.00 55.47
6,551.73 41,437.28
13,403.84 113,070.96
13.403,84 113,070.96
45.64 1.276.87
45,64 1,276,67
0.00 399.77
0.00 306.77
.00 550.00
700,60 2,386,060
150.00 1,171.00
850.00 4,106.00
0.00 -66.48
8.00 -56.46
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5:56 PM Charter School of the Dunes
' Profit & Loss

02M19M43
Accrual Basis

45560.440 BuHding Rental
45590.440 Equipment Rent
Total 45600 - Rent of Builkiing & Equipment

46000, - Moveable Equipment,
46000.730 Moveable Equipment
48000.741 Computers
46000,747 Software

Total 46600, - Moveahle Equipment,

£2100.832 Bond Interest

62200,832 Interest Expense

Temporary Distribution

Depreciation Expense
Total Expense

Net Income

January 2043

Jan 13 Juii2 - dan13
18,500.02 129,547 .40
1,072.34 7,367.52
14,572.36 136,804.92
26.87 26.57
6.00 3,027.22
72620 1,411.10
751,77 4,464.80
¢.00 100,658.24
0.00 9,960.00
0.00 0.00
48,060.30 318,478.79
804,883.96 5,110,012.27
-30,236.17 10,414.78
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ATTACHMENT 9



Not Applicable'-
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